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(Exhibits 308 through 322 marked for
identification.)

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I call Case 06-T-0650,
application of New York Regional Interconnect, Inc., for
a certificate of environmental compatibility and public
need under Article VII of the Public Service Law.

Could we begin with appearance of counsel?

MR. BISSELL: For New York Regional
Interconnect, the law firm of Couch White, LLP, by
Leonard Singer, Garrett Bissell and-William McCarthy.

MR. KLUCSIK: For Communities Against Regional
Interconnect, Gilberti, Stinziano, Heintz & Smith, P.C.,
by Brenda Colella and John Klucsik.

MR. BELSITO: Department of Public Service,-
Steve Blow, assistant counsel, and Anthony Belsito,
assistant counsel.

MR. MALONE: For the New York Power Authority,
Sarah Barish-Straus and Mark Malone.

MS. WILKINSON: For the New York State
Department of Environment —-- of Environmental
Conservation, Lisa Wilkinson.

MS. HINTZ: For New York State DOT, Donna
Hintz.

MR. TORIELLO: For the New York State Thruway
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Authority, John Toriello from the law firm of Holland &
Knight.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. We're beginning this
morning with the New York State Thruway Authority
witnesses, I believe.

MR. TORIELLO: Yes, Your Honor. We're
prepared.

JUDGE STQCKHOLM: Good morning, gentlemen.
Would you please remain standing? Would you both raiée
your right hand?

CHRISTOPHER WAITE and LAWRENCE FRAME,
after first having been duly sworn, were examined and
testified as follows:

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you. Pleaée be seated
and give your full name to the reporter.

MR. WAITE: I'm Christopher A. Waite.

MR. FRAME: Lawrence J. Frame.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Go ahead, counsel. You can
identify the testimony, et cetera.

MR. TORIELLO: Thank you, Your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. TORIELLO:

Q Mr. Waite, first, do you have a copy of your

direct testimony there in front of you with the
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exhibits?
A (Waite) I do.
Q And have you had an opportunity to review that

direct testimony?

A (Waite) Yes, I have.

Q And do you have any changeg to that direct
testimony?

A (Waite) I have one change.

Q And what chénge is that, sir, please?

A fWaite) The testimony states that I received my

professional engineering license in 1981. And upon

checking, I realized it's 1982.

Q Thank you. Do you have any other changes?
A (Waite) No, I don't.
Q Did you also have the opportunity to see the

cross—examination of Mr. Michael Mariotti?

A (Waite) Yes, I did.

Q And did you hear the gquestions and answers with
respect to property rights and permitting requirements
for the Thruway?

A (Waite) Yes, I did hear those.

Q Would you please tell us whether from the
Thruway's perspective, use-and-occupancy permits and

work permits involved property rights?
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A (Waite) From the Thruway's perspecﬁive, both
permits, use-and-occupancy and work permits, do involve
property rights.

Q And would you tell us, please, why the
use—and-occupancy permit involves property rights?

A (Waite)AThe use—ana—occupancy perﬁit generally
is structured‘to allow, perhaps, a long-term use of
Thruway property for some purpose, so a facility or an
installatién I assume would be there for quite a while.
And that permit would also regulate its use.

Q And with respect to the work permit, why is it
that the work permit involvés property rights?

A (Waite) Well, the work permit involves
permission to enter upon the lands of the Thruway
Authority and perform some specifiéd activity.

Q Thank you. Wifh respect to permits, does the
Thruway Authority require permits for aerial cables even

when structures are not located on the Thruway property?

A (Waite) Yes, it does.
Q And why is that?
A (Waite) An aerial cable over the Thruway would

involve our air rights, which is a property interest.
Q Okay. And does the Thruway Authority require

this for reasons with respect to knowledge and
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information as well?

A (Waite) Yes, it does.
0 And why is that?
A (Waite) Well, thefe's an -- there's an

inventory aspecf so we know what is involved in the
permit, say, in an aerial, where it is, what it is, if
it has a voltage, we'd like to know that. And then in
reviewing the application, we want to apply all the
standards and restrietions to that.

Q And so. are there also conditions involved in
those permits? |

A (Waite) Yes, there are.

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, just I guess a point
of clarification, I'm not sure if I'm going to raise an
objection at this point in point in time, is it the
normal practice we're going to allow supplemental direct
testimony beyond what's been filed, or should this be
matters raised based on redirect, based on the
cross—examination of the parties? Because this is all
beyond the scope of the direct testimony that's been
filed before us.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I —— I understand that, but I
think that there were opinions expressed on the record

with regard to the application of, I think it was DOT
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witnesses. ‘

MR. TORIELLO: That's correct, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: With regard to the
application of the permits that this direct testimony is
addressing, that my recollection is ié.contrary to
what's currently being put on the record.

MR. TORIELLO: That's correct, Your Honor.
Well, some of it is contrary and some of it is
clarification.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Understood. I don't mean 100
percent'contrary, but may nof be completely consistent
with the prior tesfimony.

MR. TORIELLO: That's correct, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: So I'm going to allow some of
this.

MR. TORIELLO: There's only a féw more
questions, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Go ahead, counsel.

MR. TORIELLO: Thank you.

BY MR. TORIELLO:

Q With respect fo permits for boring underneath
the Thruway, does the Thruway require a permit for
boring underneath the Thruway?

A (Waite) Yes, it does.
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Q - And would you please tell us why that is?

A (Waite) These are for similar reasons, for the
overhead instance, so that we know what is being
installed( where it's being installed, how deep perhaps,
and -- and would have restrictions and conditions for
future maintenance.

Q Okay. And does that involve any property

rights as well, the boring underneath?

A (Waite) Yes, 1t does.
Q And could you tell us what that is?
A (Waite) Those property rights obviously are

occupation, entering upon lands and occupying the space
in the right-of-way.
Q Thank you.

MR. TORIELLO: Judge, I'm not sure, should I
move his testimony -- his original direct testimony in
at this time and his exhibits or aﬁterwards?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Let me ask you, sir, do you
have a copy of your direct testimony in front of you?

MR. WAITE: I do.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: We can do this with both of
you. Is it the same testimony?

MR. TORIELLO: No, Judge. Different --

different testimonies. And the other witness,
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Mr. Frame, has a correction to his originally filed
testimony.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay.

MR. TORIELLO: So that's why I was doing it one
at a time.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. I'm sorry. Did you
lay that foundation, counselor?

MR. TORIELLO: Yes, I did, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Then the testimony shall be
copied into the record as though given orally. I'm
sorry; I was looking for something. I wasn't paying
attention.

MR. TORIELLO: Thank you, Your Hohor.

.(The following is the prefiled direct testimony

of Christopher Waite:)
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Please tell us your name and current employment.

Christopher A. Waite, I am the Chief Engineer for the New York

State Thruway Authority and the New, York State Canal

Corporation.

What is your educational background and employrﬁent history?

I received my Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Rensselaer

Polyte;:hnic Institute in Troy, New York. I have becn a registered
Professional Engineer in New York State since 1981, as well as a

past president and member of the Albany Society of Engineers

since 1985. I have worked for the Thruway Authority for 34 years.

¥ became Chief Engincer in March of 2006. Prior to that, my
positions with the Authbrity were as follows: Supervisor of the
Pavement Managem'ént‘Unit (1988-1992), Direétor of Design
Quality Assurance (1992-1993), Director of the Bureau of
Highway Design (1993-2000), Director of the Office of Design
(2000-2002) and Director of Engineering Services (2004-2006).
Between 2002 and 2004, I directed a comprehensive study of
regional transportation needs in the 30-mile I-287 corridor,
including analysi;c, of the Tappan Zee Bridge.

What are your current duties as Chief Engineer of The New York

State Thruway Authority?
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A. I am responsible for all engineering at the Aﬁtﬁority. In éddition, I
oversee the development and implementation of the Authority’s
$2.1 Billion Capital Construction Program.

Q. Have ydu had the opportunity to review the application of New

“York Regional Interconnect that has been filed in this matter?

A, . Yes.

Q.  How would the siting of ﬂxe transmission lines as contemplated in
the application affect the Thruway? | |

A.  As an initial matter, it should be noted that use of the Thruway
Right of Way for longitudinal occupancy is restricted by the
Accommodation Plan for Longitudinal Use of Freeway Right-of-
Way by Utilities issued By the New York State Department of
Transportation.. The Authority's testimohy submitted today_.does
not address longitudinal use of the Thruway Right of Way. Should
a longitudinal alternative be adequately supported to merit
substantive consideration, the Authority reserves the right to
submit further testimony and evidence. Aside from the serious
issues posed by such an alternative, theiAuthor.ity'staff hés |
identified issues relating to the transverse crossing of the Thruway
to occur at mile post 235 in the Proposeci Route and at mile post
_230.4 in fwo of the iardffered alternatives.

Q. Can you identify exhibit number 1?7
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A.

Christopher A. Waite

*Yes. It is a map prepared by the Authority staff that depicts the

area of the Thruway that would potentially be affected by the
proposal.

What are the céncems that have been identified with regard to
these transverse crossings?

Generally, the prime concern is that the applicant abides by all of

the Authority’s requirements concerning use of the Thruway Right -

of Way as would any. other applicant. In the normal course, such

compliance would be ensured through the permitting process.v That

is, the applicant must apply for work permits and occupancy '

. permits and undergo review of its application in accordance with

applicable Authority requirements.

Where would the.applicant find the applicable requirements which
would govern the issuance of the necessary permits?

Generally, it should be noted that issuance of permits and disposals
of real prdpérty under the jurisdiction of the Authority must
comply with the Thruway Rcal Property Management Policy.
With regard to permit requirements, they are set forth in the Work
Permit Application, the Occupancy Permit Application and the
New York State Thruway Authority Occupancy and Work Permit
Accommodation Policy. The Authority also brings standards to
bear upon the application review process that are culled from

several outside sources, some of which are referenced in the
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Christopher A. Waite

Authority Occupancy and Work Permit Accommodation Policy. .
These outside sources include the Acéommodation Plan for
Longitudinal Use of Freeway Right-of-Way by Utilities issued by
the New York State Department of Transport_atidﬁ, the design
standards of the American Association of State Highway and
Transportation Officials (AASHTO), the Policy on the
Accommodation of Utilities within Freeway Rights of Way, Oct.
2003, published by AASHTO, the Manual of Uniform Traffic -
Confrol Devices (MUTCD), the Highway Design Manual, the
Requirer}zents for the Design and Construction of Underground

Utility Installations within the State Highway Right of Way, and

- the New York State Department of Transportation 2002 Standard

Spéczﬁcations, as'amended by the ThruWay Authority. Thé
Authority usually applies these standards because generally they
are accepied standards and embody good engineering judgment.
Of course, there can be exceptions wheré appropriate.

Can you identify Exhibit number 2?

Tt is the Thruway Real Property Management Policy, to which I

just referred.

Can you identify Exhibit fumber 3? -

It is the Work Permit Application, to Which 1 just referreﬂ.
Can you identify Exhibit number 47

It is the Occupancy Permit Application, to which I just referred.
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Q.
A.

Christopher A. Waite

Can you idenﬁfy, Exhibit number 57
It is the New York State Authority Occupancy and Work Permit
Accommodation Policy, to which I just referred.

Why would the applicant be subject to all of the standards and

other substantive requifements to which you just referred?

The Thruway Authority was created by the New York State
Legislature through Title 9 of article 2 of the Public Authorities
Law and that enabling statute directs'the Authority, among other
things, to maintain and ,operaie the Thruway system for the
convenience, welfare, and the improvement of the health of the
people of the State of New York. All'of the foregoin:g standar‘ds
and substantive rcquirements for the use, occupancy, work, and
installation upon the Thruway property are imposed with t'hé safety
of the public and the efficient operation of the Thrﬁway in mind.

Suffice it to say, central to the Authority's mission is insuring the

safcty of the traveling public.

What kind of impact could a project, as contemplated by the
application at issue here, have upon the Thruway and the
Authority's cc;ncems about public safety.

We understand that whichever transmissién rou.te is certified, there

will necessarily be at least one crossing of the Thruway somewhere

. betwéen mile post 235 and mile post 230. For the yeér 2007, we

have calculated the average annual daily two-way traffic, or Two-
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Way AADT,.in that area to be approximately 23,450 vehicles.

AADT is an industry standard for measuring how busy a road is—

the "two-way" designation simply indicates that it includes traffic

traveling in both the east and west bound lanes. All of the

- passengers in those vehicles will be exposed to any potential safety

hazard posed by the disruption of t;afﬁc incident to the installation
of the faciliﬁ and by the potential safety hazards posed b'y the
facility once it is in place. Accordingly, the Authority's central
concern with respect-to the transmission line project is that it is
sited, constructed, and maintained properly. to minimize the safety

threat to the traveling public. Private applicants seeking to use the

Thruway Right of Way for commercial purposes may not have the

same concerns. We have found the imposition of the foregoing

" standards and substantive requirements through our permitting

process is-an effective way to have the private applicants address
those safety co'ncems.v

After tl.le necessary permits are iséuéd, whét would be the
applicant'é continuing obligation to the Authority?

The applicant must coordinate with the Authority for all work to be
performed in the Thruway Right of Way. Prior to submitting its
construction plan for the fabilit‘y, the applicant will be required to
provide to the Authority a preliminary désign marked to avoid

conflicts with potential transportation projects that the Authority
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may seek to undertake in the future and must accommodate any
Authority concems. Additional concerns may arise and conditions
may be imposed once the applicant's designs have been finalized.

Based on what you can discern from the applicatioﬁ about the

proposed transverse crossing of _the Thruway, can you identify any

rule, regulation or policy of the Authdrity that the proposed
crossing would i)e in violation of?

Yes. The application plainly contemplz'u.es an overhead c;rossing,
whereas it is the policy of the Authority to encourage unéefground
ihstallation where possible. This has Been tﬁe policy because of
hiétorical-fallen'ﬁne incidents, which always have the potential to
Se serious safety hazards. On the other hand, given the high
voltafge and direct current that ié ;ontemplated in the proposal, we
rjecognize that there may also be significant _safety'hazards
presented in the underground placement of the line. We will be
interested in hearing the evidence presented at -the hearing with
respect to such potential safety concerns, and we may ha've
something more to add at that time.

Do you l;ave any otimer concerns?

Additional concerns may arise as the certification process and the

permitting process move forward.
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BY MR. TORIELLO:
Q Mr. Frame, do you have a copy of your direct

testimony there?

A (Frame) Yes, I do.

Q And do you ﬁave any changes £o that direct
testimony?

A (Frame) Yes, I have one change.

0 And is the change on page 10 -- starting on

page 10, line 22, and proceeding on to page 11, line 772
A (Frame) Yes, it is.
0 And does the change relate to the vertical

height requirements?

A (Frame) Yes, it does.

Q Could you please tell us what the change is?

A (Frame) We would rgquire a 75-foot vertical
clearance.

0 And is that 75 feet over the canal as well as

over the UDS sites?

A (Frame) Yes, it is.

Q And how did you discover the need for this
change?

A (Frame) Upon review of the rebuttal testimony,

the statement was made there that the 60 feet that we

had asked for or had required was in excess of what the
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National Electrical Safety Code requires. So we did
some investigation. I spoke with our division canal
engineers, our division permit engineers who would be
responsible for writing permits for this project, and
there is a guidance document that would require 75 —-
that's in effect right now that would require 75 feet in
this instance.

0 And with respect to canal operations, can you
tell us what canal operations are impacted by the
vertical clearance of these lines?

A (Frame) Well, there's two situations. In both
cases, it involves dredging, dredging the navigation
channel.

Q Could you explain to us how that operation is
impacted by the vertical clearance?

A (Frame) The vertical clearance over the water
are dredging activities. One of the pieces of equipment
that we use is a Derrick boat, which has a -- basically
it's a crane on the water. It's has about -- a boom
that the working height is about 60 feet above the level
of the water. Excuse me.

So during the operation of the Derrick boat, we
would need a 60-foot clearance for the boom, and then my

safety people have told me that there's a requirement of
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a 10-foot buffer zone between the piece of equipment~and
this transmission line. So over the water, we would
need something slightly in excess of 70 feet.

Q And with respect to the UDS sités which are
described in your testimony, what operations are
impacted by the vertical clearance?

A (Frame) We use several different pieces of
heavy equipment in our UDS sites, one of which is a
Efane with a -- there are two cranes that we use in this
location with a boom height of about 65 feet from —-
from grade. So the 65 feet with that same 10-foot
buffer zone would require us to require 75 feet.

Q And is there a process in place at the New York
State Canals Corporation for considering changes to

these requirements?

A (Frame) Yes, there is.

Q What is that process?

A (Frame) An application is made for the permit.
That's done in our division offices. If -- if there 1is
a variation requested, then it would -- it would be

discussed with headquarters, and then a decision would
be made to whether or not that a variance would be
granted.

Q And are permits required -- required by the
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Canal Corporation with respect to aerial lines and lines

that are bored underneath canal lines?

A (Frame) Yes, they are.

Q And why is that?

A (Frame) Because there are property rights
involved. We —-- we issue permits that, as Mr. Waite

stated, it gives the permittee the right to occupy and

use canal land. It also allows us to document what's

being done by the permittee on canal land, and

additionally, to condition that work that is being done.
Q Thank you.

MR. TORIELLO: I would move Mr. Frame's
testimony, direct testimony into evidence at this time,
Your Honor, subject to the change that he has made.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: It will be copied into the
record as though given orally.

(The following is the prefiled direct testimony

of Lawrence Frame:)
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Please tell us your name and current employment.

Lawrence J. Frame; I am employed by the New York State Canal
Corporation.

What is your educational background and employment history?

I have a Bachelor of Science from Union College in Schenectady,
New York and am a Professional Engineer licensed to practice in
New York State. I was employed by the New York State
Department of Transportation for 14 years as a Bridge Design
Engineer and then for 7 years by the New York State Thruway
Authority in a similar capacity and also as the Director of the
Facilities Design Bureau. Following that, I'spent 2 years as
Director of the Canal Design Bureau; 3 years as Deputy Director
of the Office of Canal Maintenance and Operations; and the last 5
years as Deputy Director of the Canal Corporation, in charge of
Canal Maintenance and Operations.

What are your current duties as Deputy Director of the New York
State Canal Corporation, which I'll refer to as the Canal
Corporation?

I oversee the maintenance and operation of the New York State
Canal System, as defined in Section 2 of the Canal Law. This
involves responsibility for approximately 500 employees in 3
divisions and 7 sections across the system. Maintenance activities

include the dredging program, the winter maintenance program,
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navigation season maintenance projects, bank repair and
reclamation, movable dam cleaning and structure and channel
maintvenance. On the operations side, 1 oversee canal employees
who are responsible for the operation of the locks, dams,‘ lift
bridges and other structures w}}ich make up the system, water level
control, movable dam operation, customer service and traiﬁing.A
What is the relationship between the Canal Corporation and the
New York State Thruway Authority?

The Canal Corporation, created pursuant to Section 382 of the
Public Authorities Law (Chapter 766 of the Laws of 1992) is a
subsidiary of the New York State Thruway Authority

Have you had the opportunity to review the application of New
York Regional Interconnect that has been filed in this matter?
Yes.

How would the siting of the transmission lines as contemplated in
the application affect the use, maintenance and operation of the
Canals, as defined in Section 2 of the Canal Law (which will
henceforth be referred to as the “Canal”), and Canal Corporation
lands? |
As an initial matter, the Proposed Route as well as several
1dentified alternative routes contained in the Application'do not
provide details with respect to the precise location of the proposed

installation. As a result, it is not possible to identify all
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construction and maintenance issues created by the proposal and
the alternatives. Notwithstanding that qualification, Canal
Corporation staff has ideﬁtiﬁed several concems and objections
regarding the use, maintenance and operation of the Canal as it
runs through the towns of Marcy and Utica.

What are those concerns and objections?

Prime concerns are the impact on the Canal and on the Upland
Disposal Sites located on Canal Corporation land adjacent to the
Canal and the impact on the operation of those sites. These
concerns relate to possible placement of the suspension towers in
the Upland Disposal Sites, the clearance (both vertical and
horizontal) for both the suspension structure and the strung wires,
and to the possible placement of the transmission line under the
Canal and an adjacent Upland Disposal Site proposed in Alternate
MS-A. AsIunderstand it, the aﬁplicant has agreed that it will not
construct a suspension tower within the Upl‘and Disposal Sites, so
this addresses our first concern.

What is an Upland Disposal Site?

An Upland Disposal Site, or a UDS, the acronym that we use, is
normally a bermed area with rr.xan-made steep berms adjacent to
the Canal which is used to contain dredge spoils from dredge
operations undertaken by the Canal Corporation to ensure the safe

navigation of the Canal.
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Would you please identify exhibit 1?7

Yes. This is a map that was prepared by thé employees of the
Canal Corporation to depict the areas of the Canal Corporation
lands affected by the proposed and alternative routes. The
proposed and alternative routes are labeled on the exhibit. The
exhibit depicts the proposed route and the several altemate'routes
that would run along side and or cross the Canal. On the map, the
areas to which I am referring—the up]aﬁd disposal sites or
UDSs—are identified in the map legend as "Canal Dredge Spoil
Sites." They are further ideﬁtiﬁed as UDS 4-30, UDS 4-31 and
UDS 4-35.

What is the function of these sites?

Dredge operations are an important part of the Canal Corporation's
function and are essential to ensure the safe navi gation‘ of the
canals by the public. UDS preparation and maintenance is carried
out by using heavy construction eqﬁipment to move large
quantities of previously deposited dredge spoil material within
each UDS. During active dredging operations, a UDS is typically
flooded repeatedly with water and sediment to a depth of several
feet and then drained, creating a highly erodible condition. During
this operation, the berms of the UDS are gene.rally increased in
height so as to maintain tile original volume. At present some

UDSs have berm heights of 20 to 25 feet.
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Can you please identify exhibit number 2?

Yes. That is a document prepared by Canal Corporation staff
entit_led "Upland Disposal Site Process," which desoribes the
general purpose and function of Upland Disposal Sites. It includes
several color photographs that are representative of the UDSs
located along the Canal, during dry and flooded conditions and in
the'process of being flooded and manipulated ouring the course of
their usual operations.

Can you identify exhibit number 3?

Yes. Exhibit Number Three is a collection of four photographs of
one of the UDS sites at issue in this matter—that is UDS 4-30.
You can see the crane as it deposits dredge spoils into the site.
You can also get a good look at the berm at the site as it existed in
2004. Presently, that berm measures approximately 4 to 5 feet in
height. Based on past activity at other UDSs, we might reasonably
expect that berm to increase to a height of approximately 20 to 25
feet in the future. As to the other UDSs at issue in this matter—
UDS 4-31 and 4-35—they have been inactive in the recent past,
but we might reasonably expect that they will become active for
the deposit of dredge spoils and, therefore, will present the same
concerns as UDS 4-30.

Turning now to another issue, please explain the concern with

respect to the clearance—both vertical and horizontal-—which
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must be provided for both the suspension structure and the strung
wires.

If transmission wires are strung too low or too dlose, they may
obstruct the safe navigation, operation and maintenance of the
Canal.

What is necessary to address these concerns?

The applicant—Ilike any party seeking to use, occupy and/or work
on Canal Corporation lands—must abide by the rules and
regulations and the permitting process prescribed by the Canal
Corporation. The Canal Corporation derives its power to institute
those rules and regulations and condition the use of Canal
Corporation lands accordingly from the New York State
Legislature, section 382 of the Public Authorities Law and the
Canal Law. While the Applicant will be required to comply with
all of the rules and regulations, and permit requirements, a specific,
though not exclusive concern is that the applicant satisfy certain
minimum clearance requirements.

What is that permitting process?

Generally, it should be noted that issuance of permits and disposals
of real property under the jurisdiction of the Canal Corporation
must comply with the Canal Real Property Management Policy.
The requirements of the permitting process are set forth in Part 156

of the Rules and Regulations of the Canal Corporation. Generally,
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the process can be described as follows. The applicant must apply
for Canal work permits and Canal use and occupancy iaermits, and
undergo review by Canal Corporation staff for the construction
and operation of the facility in accordance with the Rules and
Regulations and all requirements of the Canal Permﬁ Application.
The actual application process begins when the applicant submits
its application for a permit. Then Canal Corporation staff
determines whether all of the necessary information has been
received. If so, a decision is made as to the fee to be imposed and
the required insurance. Additionally, it will be determined if any
special peﬁnit conditions need to be applied to the proposed use.
Would you please identify Exhibit number 4? -
Yes, it is the Canal Real Property Management Policy, to which I
was just referring.

Would you please identify Exhibit number 5?

It is the Canal Permit Application form that a party seeking to use,
occupy and or perform work on Canal lands would use to apply for
such right. »

Would you please identify Exhibit number 6?

It is the Use and Occupancy permit that would be issued if the Use
and Occupancy permit application is granted. It lists many
standard conditions, and additional conditions may be inserted

once more details are known about a particular project.

-
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Would you please identify Exhibit number 77

It is the Work permit that would be issued if the Work permit
application is granted. It also lists many stanciard conditions, and
additional conditions may be inserted once more details are known
about a particular project.

Where would the applicant find the rules and regulations which
would govern a party seeking to use, occupy and conduct work
within Canal lands and the design requirements for underground
utilities on canal lands?

All construction within the New York State Canal System must be
designed and performed according to the construction, traffic and
safety st(;indards and other substantive requirements contained in
the following: (1) Canal Permit Application; (2) Part 156 of the
Rules and Regulations of the New York State Canal Corporation,
which was promulgated pursuant to the legislative authority
granted through sections 10, 86 and 100 of the Canal Law; and (3)
the Requirements for the Design and Construction of Underground
Utility Installations Within the State Highway Right-of-Way as
modified by the Requirements for the Installation of Underground
Utilities Within Canal Corporation Right of Way. Construction
cannot commence until all necessary permits are obtained from the
Canal Corporation.

Would you please identify exhibit 8?
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A.

It is a copy of the Rules and Regulations of the New York State
Canal Corporation I previously mentioned.

Would you please identify exhibit 97

It is a copy of the Requirements for the Design and Construction of
Underground Utility Installations Witﬁin the State Highway Right-
of-Way as modified by the Requirements for the Installation of
Underground Utilities Within Canal Corporation Right of Way to
which I was just referring.

With respect to horizontal clearance, what are the applicable
regulations?

Section 156.4(b)(2)(i) would apply. As I understand it, the
proposed project would employ 400 kilovolt transmission lines.
The rules do not specifically prescribe a minimum corridor width
for 400kv. The Canal Corporation's conservative practice—
especially when the public health and safety is at issue—would be
to apply the minimum prescribed corridor width for the next
highest voltage, which is 500kv. Accordingly, 175 feet would be
the required horizontal corridor for the proposed transmission line
at issue here with the transmission line centg:red in that corridor.
And as to vertical clearance, what would be required?

With regard to non-UDS sites, the applicant would be required to
provide vertical conductor clearances of at least 40 feet. This is

consistent with the standards of the National Electric Safety Code,

10




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Case No. 06-T-0650 Lawrence J. Frame, P.E.

which the Applicant references in Item 1 of the Table located at E-
1.3.1 and proposes to apply to the traék rails of railroads. For all
UDS sites we would require at least 60 feet above the highest
elevation within the Site, itself, at the time of the construction.
This clearance would be necessary to allow equipment to be used
on top of the berms as they exist now and as we anticipate them to
grow in the future.

How much notice must the applicant give the Canal Corporation
before commencement of site preparation.

The applicant must give at least 60 days advance notice. We are
continually performing operation and maintenénce activities
throughout the Canal System and we plan our operations prior to
the navigation season which begins on May 1 and concludes on
November 15. We need 60 days notice to allow for sufficient time
to modify our plans to execute necessary Canal operation and
maintenance activities within the area affected by the proposed
transmission route in this matter.

Other than your concerns about the UDS and the applicability of
the Canal permitting process through which the Canal could ensure
compliance with its rules and regulations;including those
concemning clearance—do you have any other concerns or

objections?

11
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I A Yes. The route identified in the application as Alternate MS-A

2 which contémplates placement of the transmission line underneath

3 the Upland Disposal Site is unacceptable. As noted previously in

4 this testimony, our preparation of the UDSs includes significant

5 construction activities by heavy construction equipment including

6 excavation of the site using bulldozers and track mounted

7 excavators. As such, UDSs are active excavation sites and it

8 would be entirely unreasonable to permit high voltage energy

9 transmission wires to ruﬂ undemeath an area whose primary

10 functions calls for regular excavation and earth moving activity.

11 . The Canal Corporation has never before permitted an applicant to
‘ 12 site any manner of transmission line underneath an active UDS.

Dated: Albany, New York
January 9, 2009

LAWRENCE J. FRAME

#5913334_v3
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MR. TORIELLO: Thank you, Your Honor. And the
exhibits that are attached to .those testimonies, can I
move those into evidence as well?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: We'll deal with those at the

end of the day. That's our normal practice. However,

an identification of the exhibits-is necessary.

MR. TORIELLO: Okay. -

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: If you'd have each of the
witnesses just very briefly describe the exhibits that
they submitted.

MR. TORIELLO: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. TORIELLO:

Q Mr. Waite, if you could open up your testimony.

With respect to Exhibit 1, could you tell us briéfly
what that exhibit is?

A (Waite) Yes. Exhibit 1 is a map showing
crossings of the Thruway by the various alternatives to
the NYRI proposal.

Q And also showing the NYRI crossing as well; is
that right?

A (Waite) Correct.

Q And 1if you take a look at Exhibit 2, would you
tell us what that is?

A (Waite) Exhibit 2 is a general policy on the
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management of property for the Thruway Authority,
Thruway real property.

MR. TORIELLO: Excuse me just one second. If
may approach the witnesses, Your Honor. I forgot to
give them one document.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes. Sure.

Q Would you take a look at Exhibit 2, please,

Mr. Waite? Would you please tell us what that is?

A (Waite) Yes.
Q What is it?
A Exhibit 2 is the Thruway real property

management policy.

Q And that particular policy that's in fronf of
you is dated March 23rd,'2006;'is that correct, sir?

A (Waite) Yes, it is.

Q And I just handed you a document which I
previously left on the tables for the various parties
and given a copy to the reporter, which is dated
January 21st, 2009; is that correct, sir?

A (Waite) That's correct.

Q So is this the policy that was more recently
adopted by the Thruway?

A (Waite) Yes, it.is.

MR. TORIELLO: Okay. I don't have that

I
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designated as an exhibit, Your 'Honor, but I would offer
it and call it Exhibit 2A, if that's acceptable.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I'll be giving you exhibit
numbefs on that. And the filed exhibit being, I don't
mean to be derogatory, but outdated or superseded will
not be marked in evidence, but the new policy will.

MR. TORIELLO: Okay. Thank you, Your Honor.

Q And then if I can show you what's been marked
as Exhibit 3 attached to your testimony. Would you
please tell us briefly what that is?

A (Waite) Yes. Exhibit 3 is a work permit
application for work on the Thruway.

Q And furning to Exhibit 4.  Would you please

tell us what that is?

A (Waite) Exhibit 4 is an occupancy permit
application.
Q And if you would take a look at Exhibit 5.

Would you please tell us what that is?

A (Waite) Exhibit 5 is the New York State Thruway
Authority occupancy and work permit accommodation
policy.

Q Thank you. And, Mr. Frame, if you could take a
look at the exhibits attached to your testimony.

Turning to Exhibit 1, would you please tell us what that
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is?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Let me interrupt just very
briefly aﬁd indicate that the exhibits that were just
identified by Mr. Waite have been marked for
identification sequentially-as Exhibits 309-313 for
identification.

Sorry, counselor. Go ahead.

MR. TORIELLO: Thank you, Judge.

Q Referring, Mr. Frame, to Exhibit 1 to your
testimqny. Would you please tell us what that is?

A (Frame) Exhibit 1 is a map prepared by
canal/Thruway staff to show the proposed NYRI
transmission routeé.

Q And if you would please turn to Exhibit 2.
Would you please tell us what that is?

A (Frame) This is a narrative put together by

canal staff which explains our upland disposal site

process.
Q And is the upland disposal site also referred
to as UDS?
A (Frame) Yes, it is.
Q If you'd turn to Exhibit 3. Would you please

tell us what that is?

A (Frame) Exhibit 3 is four pictures of our
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activities in UDS Number 4-30, which was one of the
subject UDS sites in this case.'

Q And do these photographs fairly and accurately
depict the general -- the general activities in these
UDS sites?

A (Frame) Yes, they do.

Q I show you whét's been marked as Exhibit 4.
Would you please tell us what'that is?

A (Frame) That's the canal real property
management policy.

Q If you'd fake a look at Exhibit 5. Would you
please identify that for us?

A ({Frame) That is a canal permit application.

Q If you would take a look at Exhibit 6. Would
you please tell us what that is?

A (Frame) It is a typical use-and-occupancy
permit for canal land.

Q Take a look at Exhibit 7. Would you please
tell us what that is?

A (Frame) It's a typical canal work permit for

canal land.

Q And if you'd then turn to Exhibit 8. Would you

please tell us what that is?

A (Frame) It's a copy of the rules and
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regulations of the New York State Canal Cbrporation.
Q Thank you.
MR. TORIELLO: I defer to Your Honor.
A (Frame) There is an Exhibit 9.
Q I'm sorry. I missed that. Thank you.
Would you tell us, please, what Exhibit 9 is?
A (Frame) Yes. It's a copy of the requirements
for the design and construction of underground utility
installations within the state highway right-of-way as
modified by the requirements for the installation of
underground utilities within Canal Corporation
right-of-way.
Q Thank you.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: The exhibits just identified
have been marked consecutively for identification as
Exhibits 314 through 322.

MR. TORIELLO: I have no further questions,
Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Witnesses available for

cross—-examination. Who has cross-examination?

Do we not have cross—-examination for this these

witnesses?
I apologize, Mr. Klucsik.

The group is very quiet today.
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MR. KLUCSIK: Your Honor, with the
understanding that longitudinal use of the Thruway
right-of-way has been the subject of rebuttal testimony
by several parties, and with the further understanding
that an opportunity for cross-examination on proposals
for longitudinal uses in the Thruway right-of-way would
be offered at a later time in this hearing, CARI has no
questions of these witnesses at this time with respect
to the scope of their direct testimony, reserving its
right to cross-examination on such longitudinal uses may
be gddressed in rebuttal on that topic.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are you talking about the
rebuttal that was due yesterday?

MR. KLUCSIK: Yes, Your Honor. I believe it
may be necessary based on rebuttal to call certain
witnesses back.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes, that's what I'm hearing
you say.

MR. KLUCSIK: And I would also point out in
that connection, that at least Mr. Waite's testimony, if
I recall it correctly, specifically cautions that his
teétimony is not with respect to longitudinal -- his
direct testimony that's the subject of his appearance

today is not -- does not treat longitudinal uses.
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MR. TORIELLO: Judge, we did -- Mr. Waite did
file rebuttal testimony dealing with the longitudinal
use of the Thruway yesterday afternoon.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Ah, now I understand.

We haven't set a date yet for the
cross—examination of that testimony, and we obviously
will require witnesses to come in and support that
testimony.

No, I don't think it's appropriate to
cross—-examine the witness today oﬁ a piece of testimony
you've had less than 24 hours. So I think I do
understand what you're suggesting, and the witness would
certainly be brought back for that. However, questions
that go to the prefiled direct testimony of these
witnesses should be asked now. I am not going to
require them to come back and testify again about the
testimony that's in front of us today.

MR. KLUCSIK: Understood, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay.

MS. HINTZ: Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes.

MS. HINTZ: Is it possible to set a time frame

for the Thruway Alternative scheduling of these

witnesses? We've been talking about it. And if we need
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to bfing back witnesses, we could get an idea.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, you're going to have to
bring back whatever witnesses filed testimony yesterday.
And I'd love to be able to pick a date for you, but at
this point, I can't. I suspect that we may be able to
schedule them during the week of —-

MR. KLUCSIK: I think we talked about
April 20th, that week, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yeah. That's the last week.
And we may be able to fit some people in or some of this
in on the week of the 13th, although that would be late
in the week.

MS. HINTZ: And there would be a conflict with
my expert witness as well the week of the 13th.
Actually, the 21st and the 24th are best for the
department.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And it will be the 22nd
through the 24th, because the 21lst is the Commission
session. | (

JUDGE PHILLIPS: I was just suggesting that we
should tentatively schedule them for the 22nd since
that's the next fully open available day after the 17th.
And to the extent there are any problems that arise with

that later, parties should let us know as soon as
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possible. But that gives you about one, two, three.
weeks from when you receive their testimony to prepare
to cross-—-examine them. |

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Was the testimony filed by
both these same witnesses or only Mrl Waite? |

MR. TORIELLO: Just by Mr. Waite, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you.

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, just to Elarify for
the 22nd, are you scheduling the DOT and Thruwéy
Authority, or is that for all rebuttal panels with
respect to the Thruwéy Alternate project?

JUDGE PHILLIPS: I'm sorry. I was only dealing
with, I believe it's Mr. Waite, who filed rebuttal
yesterday. That's the only thing I'm dealing with at
this point because we haven't had any other requests
yet.

MR. BISSELL: Thanks.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I think you can assume for
the most part that most of that testimony will probably
be done during the week of the 22nd, 22nd, 23rd, 24th.

MR. TORIELLO: Judge, I obviously will need to
speak with my witness about his schedule as well. So I
assume this is tentative --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: It's tentative. 1It's
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flexible. We'll work with whatever schedules, to the
best we can anyway.

MS. HINTZ: And that would include possibly the
Shafer and LaFleur testimoﬁy on the alternative?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yés.

MS. HINTZ: Okay . .Thank you.

| JUDGE PHILLIPS: Ms. Hintz, are you doing
cross—examination of Witnesses Shafer and LaFleur?

MS. HINTZ: Possibly, Your Honor.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Okay.

MR. TORIELLO: Mr. Klucsik already may also do
cross—examination of those two witnesses, Your Honof.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Mr. Klucsik, it looks like
those witnesses are probably going to be brought during
that last week.

MR. KLUCSIK: That has been our expectation,
Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, you're ahead of me. I
can't get that far in the future. Let's —- can you
tentatively check the 22nd to see if that's workable?

MR. KLUCSIK: I will inquire, Your Honor.

\ .

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you. So in any event,

to get back to the panel that we have here today, there

are no -- there is noc cross-examination of this panel?
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And I don't even have any questions. 1I'll really
surprise you.

Wait. Time out.

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, actually, NYRI has
one question based on the -- Based on the supplemental
direct from --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: You gentlemen were so close
to getting out of here.

MR. BISSELL: I actually just have one question
for Mr. Frame.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. BISSELL:

Q With respect to the described vertical
clearances that you were discussing this morning
somewhere in the range of above 70 feet for the barge
canal and for the UDS sites, are you aware, is there
currently a National Grid transmission line that crosses
the barge canal? |

A (Frame) Not that I'm aware of. I mean, there
may be.

Q And if they -- assuming there is a line that
does cress, would your understanding be that that line
would be in compliance with the vertical clearance

requirements set forth by the Canal Corporation?
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MR. TORIELLO: I have an objection, Your Honor.
He's asking him to make an assumption.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Could I hear that question
again? |

| (Requested portion of the record read back by
the reporter.)

MR. TORIELLO: Judge, he's already testified he
doesn't know if there is such a line. He's really
asking for speculation at this point.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: It sounds to me like a
hypothetical, that the question -- that the witness
might be able to answer not necessarily with respect to
NYRI, unless -- unless NYRI actually has --

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, may I approach the
witnesses, show them?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: You may.

MR. TORIELLO: Your Honor, may I take a look as

well?
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Absolutely. Absolutely.
BY MR. BISSELL:
Q Mr. Frame, can I please ask you to direct your

attention within what has been marked as Exhibit 37 in
this case, Figure 5, which is a -- which is an ortho map

showing a crossing at the proposed.crossing by NYRI of
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the barge canal?

A (Frame) Yes.

Q With respect to this picture, is there
currently depicted by a yellow dashed line the crossing
of the barge canal by a 115 kV line?

A (Frame) That appears to be what's depicted
here, yes.

Q And, again, I will ask you, based on what you
have identified as what appears to be a crossing of the
barge canal, would it'be your understanding that in
order to cross the barge canal, that 115 kV line would
need to meet the vertical clearance requirements you've
described?

A (Frame) I would have to make an assumption. I
don't have any factual knowledge about this particular
sitﬁation.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are the standards you're
recommending here the standards you apply to any
overhead electrical crossing of the canal?

MR. FRAME: Yes, they are.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Do you have any reason to
believe that -- that counsel's question about the
specific line is an exception to your requirements in

any way?
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MR. FRAME: Again, I would have to make an
assumption, but I don't have any reason to believe that
that's not the case. .

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: That was my question exactly.

MR. BISSELL: I have no further questions.

MR. IORIELLO: Judge, I happen to have the
guidelines that are used, which I didn't put in at this
point, but I can give them and mark them, and they.will
show that there is a difference in height requirement
for 115 kilovolt lines as opposed to 500 kilovolt lines.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Ah,. okay.

MR. TORIELLO: I didn't want to clutter the
record.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: No. .No. We've got -- we
have more than enough record. I'm not looking for extra
paper. |

MR. TORIELLO: But all of this would be dealt
with in the permitting process, which is all that we're
really saying is that they need to go through the
permitting process, and they would then deal with all
these issues of height requirements.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And these are in the NYCRR?

MR. TORIELLO: I don’f know if these are in the

NYCRR. These could be policies and procedures —-- in
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fact, I'm sure they're policies and procedures at the —-
at the Canal Corporation, which may not be in the NYCRR.
But I can mark this easily if that's of help to the -~

JUDGE STOCKHOLM{ Do you ﬁave enough copies?

MR. TOﬁ&ELLO: I do, Your Honor. I brought
about 20 copies.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Why don't.-we put it in the
record --

MR. TORIELLO: Thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: -- just to -- just to make
things clear.

MR. TORIELLQO: So this will be exhibit?

JUDGE PHILLIPS: It will be marked as Exhibit

323.

(Exhibit 323 marked for identification.)

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And just for those keeping
track of it, it'll be exhibit -- you may have noted that

we skipped 308, but I think that's been -- that's a
premarked permanent easement, which I believe is going
to be entered by the Power Authority.

MR. MALONE: That's correct, Your Honor. It's
the -- sponsored by one of our witnesses, yes.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Gentlemen, counsel handed out

a ‘document entitled "Requirements and Conditions for
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Utility Lines Over Canal Lands and Waters." Can I ask
one of you gentlemen to identify that? Are you familiar
with it? Tell me what it is.

MR. FRAME: Yes. It's —— it's what our permit
engineers and division canal engineersAwould use. to set
the conditions and requirements for any utility lines
that cross over canal lands or canal waters.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: In looking briefly at this
document, it would appear that the clearance
requirements are set based on voltage, not based on
physical requirements for the operation of cranes. Just
for example, telephone cable has to have a clearance of
35 feet, but your cranes, if I understood your testimony
correctly, go up to 60.

MR. FRAME: Yes, that is correct.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Sc your concern here is the
level of voltage in the line, not the height of the

line? 1I'm not quite sure I understand.

MR. FRAME: In my investigation, I -~ I
couldn't -- I couldn't come up with the reasoning behind
how these were set. What I -- what I testified to was

what myself and my staff felt was what would be required
for our -- our -- our current operational needs.

MR. TORIELLO: May I point out, Your Honor --
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SOrry.
May I point out, Your Honor, that B-3 does only

apply to the canal channel, which obviously is a section

that the witness has spoken about. It does not apply to

the UDS, which is a different --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I appreciate that
distinction. Thank you.

MR. TORIELLO: And B-1 does require that
everything be satisfactory to the New York State Canal
Corporation. So that's sort of a catchall division.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Understood. But, counselor,
these do not appear in 16 NYCRR; is that correct?

MR. TORIELLO: I just could nét tell you if it

does or not, Your Honor. I could find out this

-afternoon and let you know.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: If you would at some point.
It doesn't have to be this afternoon, but yes, if you
would let me know if this is from NYCRR, because the
document then may have a slightly different place in the
record.

MR. TORIELLO: 1I'll let you know, Your Honor.
I believe that the two pages Here were drawn from two
separate documents, and that they are used in the

normal -- I could ask the witness, but used in the
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normal course by the permit engineers themselves.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I'm willing to accept that
arguendo. Not a problem. |

Does this document raise any questions?

MR. KLUCSIK: Yes, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Mr. Klucsik, I knew you
wouldn't disappoint me this morning.

MR. KLUCSIK: I'm glad to know that's true,
sir.

BY MR. KLUCSIK:

Q Mr. Frame, on page 2 of the document markéd
Exhibit 323, it would appear in the table to provide a
minimum prescribed corridor width for various power line
voltages; is that correct?

A (Frame) Yes, it is.

Q And does the minimum prescribed corridor width
in any way correspond to the required clearing as a

transmission line approaches the canal?

A (Frame) By "clearing", do you mean clearing of
vegetation —-

Q Vegetation.

A No, it doesn't.

Q What does -- what does minimum prescribed

corridor width relate to?
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A (Frame) That's related to the property
interest.

Q And how would that be reflected in a work
permit? )

A (Frame) Work permit is a -- a short-term

permit. A use-and-occupancy permit would be required
first, and that's.where this corridor would come into‘
play, and then a work permit would be issued for the
work within the parameters of the work —-- or
use—-and-occupancy permit.

Q So would this use-and-occupancy permit be
roughly équivalent to an easement across canal lands?

A (Frame) Yeah, I guess you could say that.

MR. TORIELLO: I have an objection, Your Honor.
He's not a lawyer. And how he can draw the comparison
to an easement? There's no showing that he has that
necessary foundation and knowledge.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I think his answer actually
showed that. And I'll accept it in the record merely as
a statement of a layman with regard to legal issues.

MR. TORIELLO: Thank you, Your Honor.

Q Mr. Frame, the table indicating minimum
prescribed corridor width for various power line

voltages indicates a minimum corridor width for a power
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line of 500 kilovolts and a different minimum prescribed
corridor width for power line voltages of 230 to 345 kV.
Can you tell me what minimum prescribed

corridor width would apply to a power line of 400
kilovolts?

A (Frame) We would use the -- the larger voltage
of the 500 kilovolts, 175 feet.

Q And do you have an understanding of how that
minimum prescribed corridor width relates to the

right-of-way proposed by NYRI at the canal crossing?

A (Frame) I'm not sure I understand your
question.
0 I'm trying to figure ocut whether your

requirement of minimum prescribed corridor width is
greater or less than the area that NYRI has projected as
its necessary right-of-way as it crosses the canal?

A (Frame) I don't know that.

Q Thank you. R

MR. KLUCSIK: No further questions, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Anything further? Okay. You

-did get off fairly easily today, gentlemen. And let me

thank you for your time, your attendance and your
testimony.

MR. WAITE: You're welcome.
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And you're excused.

Mr. Malone.

MR. MALONE: Yes, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: We have your witnesses next,
yes?

MR. MALOﬁE: Yes, we do.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Gentlemen, if you would
please rise. Raise your right hand.

KEVIN McGRATH and MARK O'CONNOR,

after first having been duly sworn, were examined and
testified as follows:

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Please be seated and give
your full name to the reporter.

MR. McGRATH: Kevin McGrath.

MR. O'CONNOR: Mark D. O'Connor.

MR. MALONE: - Your Honors, I would just indicate

that we have supplied you with the CVs with both
witnesses' testimony.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And the disk you gave to the
reporter has the CVs as a piece of the testimony?

MR. MALONE: No, Your Honor. There were ——

there was one attachment, there was one exhibit to

Mr. O'Connor's testimony, which is 308, as you indicated

before. The testimony itself --
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Where are the CVs going to
appear?

MR. MALONE: Well, the testimony itself, Your
Honor, has their qualifications and their émployment
history with NYPA.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. Let me -- let me go
back. I was asking ali the parties to get me a CD
readable of the testimony. And my question is, does the
CD that you gave to the reporter‘include the CV with the
ﬁestimonylon that disk?

MR. MALONE: It includes the testimony, Your
Honor, not --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Not the CV?

MR. MALONE: No.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Can I ask you to provide one
that does have it? That way we will at least have the
CVs in the record. I realize it will appear as a CV in
what otherwise is a transcript, but at least it's in the
record and we can cite to it.

MR. MALONE: We can do that. Yes, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Appreciate that. Thank you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MALONE:

0 Mr. O'Connor, let me start with you. Do you
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have before you a copy of your direct testimony filed in
this proceeding which consists of eight pages?

A (O'Connor) I do. |

Q And was that testimony prepared by you or under
your direction?

A (O'Connor) Yes, it was.

Q Are there any corrections to your direct

testimony as filed?

A (O'Connor) There's one minor correction.
Q And can you tell me what that is?
A (O'Connor) It's on page 3, starting at line 4

going over to line 5. The sentence reads, "The Power
Authority trustees adopted a permitting process in 1979
and amended it in 1987." 1987 should be corrected to
read 1988.

Q With that correction, if you were asked today
these same questions in your direct testimony, would
your answers be the.same?

A (O'Connor) Yes, they would.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I respectfully request
that the direct testimony of Mr. O'Connor be copied into
the record as though it was given orally. l

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Granted.

(The following is the prefiled direct testimony
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of Mark O'Connor:)
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Q. Please state your full name, affiliation, and your title.

A. My name is Mark D. O’Connor. I am Director of Real Estate for the Power Authority
of the State of New York.

Q. What is the Power Authority of the State of New York?

A. The Power Authority is a body corporate and politic, a political subdivision of the state,
exercising governmental and public powers. The Power Authority was created in 1931
through the enactment of the Power Authority Act (Chapter 772, Laws of 1931).

Q. Please describe your education.

A. T attended Arizona State University from 1977 to 1981. I graduated with a Bachelor of
Arts degree. I graduated from the Albany Law School in 1985. In 1994, I graduated from
the Pace University School of Law with a Masters of Law in Environmental Law.

Q. Describe your professional experience.

A. T'have been with the Power Authority since 1992 and have been its Director of Real
Estate since 1995. Prior to 1992, I was an associate attorney in the private practice of law,
Q. Are you familiar with the Power Authority’s Marcy-South transmission line?

A. Yes, I am familiar with the Power Authority’s Marcy South Line

Q. What is the Marcy South Line?

A. The Power Authority’s Marcy South was licensed by the New York State Public
Service Commission by order dated January 30, 1985. The Marcy South Line is a 345 kV
transmission facility that originates in Marcy, near Utica, and terminates in East Fishkill in

Dutchess County. It includes double circuit, single circuit, overhead, and underground
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configurations, with varying widths of right-of-way. The Marcy South Line crosses over
private land, state property under New York State Department of Environmental
Conservation’s jurisdiction, and crosses in the riverbed of the Hudson River, which is

under the Office of General Services’ jurisdiction.

Q. Do you know how the Power Authority acquired the land rights to build Marcy
South?

A. From 1985 through 1987, the People of the State of New York, through the New York
State Commissioner of Transportation, on behalf of the Power Authority, acquired, by
appropriation, the majority of permanent easement ri ghts to the approximately 2,100

parcels for the Power Authority’s Marcy South Line

Q. Are there any restrictions in the Power Authority’s permanent easements

acquired by appropriation for t'hg Marcy South Line?

A. These easements contain restrictions and limitations on the use of the land and prohibit
interference with the use and exercise of the Authority’s permanent easements. No building or
other structure may be erected or maintained on the land without the written consent of the
Power Authority. Attached as Exhibit “A” is copy of a representative permanent easement on
the Marcy South Line.

Q. Are there any rights reserved to the landowner in the Power Authority permanent
easements?

A. In general, the landowner may construct and maintain a setvof electric, telephone, water,

gas, sewer lines. Additionally, the landowner has the right of ingress and egress.
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See, Exhibit “A”.

Q. Is there a procedure for obtaining the Power Authority’s permission to conduct
activities on the Power Authority’s permanent easements on the Marcy South Line?
A. The Power Authority Trustees adopted a permitting process in 1979 and amended it in
1987. In general, a landowner ﬁpon whose property the Power Authority has a permanent
easement would submit an application to the Power Authority. As set forth in the Marcy
South permanent easement language, the Power Authority does not grant permits under
circumstances in which the activities of the permittee might interfere with Power Authority
operations or prevent the Power Authority from the cqmplete enjoyment of its easement.
All permits include provisions for cancellation or termination; removal of facilities;
relocation of facilities; and insurance and indemnification.

Q. Please explain the Power Authority’s permit review process.

A. Generally, the underlying fee owner or its agent will fill out an application, on a Power

Authority form, for a permit and submit it to the Power Authority. If the application is for
a permissible use, the Power Authority internally circulates a proposed permit to Power
Authority staff. The proposed permit must be reviewed and approved by the Power
authority’s environmental, engineering, insurance, legal and transmission departments. If
each of those Power Authority departments approves the proposed permit and determines
that the activity that is the subject of the proposed permit will not interfere or potentially
interfere with the Authority’s transmission facilities and activities, a permit may be issued.

However, all Power Authority permits have proVisions providing for revocation of the
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permit and termination of the use or activity upon Power Authority notice to the permittee.
In addition, the Power Authority maintains the right to demand removal or relocation of
any permittee structure.

Q. Does the Power Authority issue permits to third parties?

A. The Power Authority’s permanent easements are appropriated by the People of New
York State, under Section 30 of the Highway Law as made applicable by Article 5, Titlé 1
of the Public Authorities Law and the Eminent Domain Procedure Law, based upon the
Power Authority’s certification that the permanent easement is necessary for the
construction and operation of the Power Authority’s eleétﬁc transmission line or lines. The
majority of the permits issued by the Power Authority are to the landowners and their
agents, and, in some circumstances, to third parties. The Power Authority would only issue
a penni( to a third party where the third party has received sufficient additional real estate
rights from the underlying fee owner.

On the Marcy South Line, the Power Authority has issued approximafely forty-six (46)
permits.

Typically, however, the Power Authority would not grant any permit or permission to
conduct activities on its permanent easement that the Power Authority determined would or
potentially could adversely impact the Power Authority’s present facilities and operations
or future development options on the Marcy South Line right-of-way.

Q. What conditions have been imposed in these permits?
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A. The standard language in the “Permit Requiring Insurance” imposes conditions, such as
“Relocation of Facilities”, which requires the permittee to relocate its constructed facilities
if those facilities interfere or become inconsistent with the Power Authority’s use,
operation and the maintenance of the transmission line; and “Removal of Facilities”, which
requires the permittee to remove the constructed or installed facilities if the permittee
ceases operation of its facilities. Additionally, a Power Authority permit often includes
“Special Conditions” to deal with specific activities and locations.

Q. Has fhe Power Authority acquired land rights for the Marcy South Line in ways
other than through permanent easements?

A. The Power Authority acquired approximately 21 parcels in fee and also acquired three
parcels through a transfer of jurisdiction from the New York State Department of
Environmental Conservation. These transfers are accomplished under New York Public_
Lands Law Section 3.

Q. Approximately how many acres of the Marcy South Line right-of-way were
acquired by transfer of jurisdiction?

A. Approximately 49.5 acres.

Q. What is a transfer of jurisdiction?

A. In the case of Marcy South, the New York State Department of Environmental
Conservation owned parcels of land élong the proposed Marcy South Line. Because of the

legal relationship between state agencies and state authority’s, jurisdiction of these parcels
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was transferred from the Department of Environmental Conservation to the Power
Authority.

Q. Are there any restrictions or limitations on these transfers of jprisdiction?

A. Yes. The transfer of jurisdiction between the Department of Environmental
Conservation and the Power Authority for the Marcy South Line specifically grants those
rights to the Power Authority that the Power Authority deems necessary for purposes
connected with the Power Authority’s Marcy South 345 kV transmission line. The transfer
of jurisdiction specifically states: “This transfer is personal to the Power Authority of the
State of New York and may not be transferred, assigned or otherwise conveyed to any
other party.”

Q. Was any real property for the Marcy South Line acquired in fee?

A. Approximately 288 acres was acquired in fee.

Q. Does the Power Authority have limitations and restrictions on the conveyance of
rights on its Marcy South right-of-way?

A. Because the Power Authority’s permanent easements for its Marcy South Line were
taken by appropriation by the People of the State of New York, the Power Authority may
be precluded from transferring or conveying any rights on its Marcy South right-of-way to
NYRI. Additionally, those parcels on which a transfer of jurisdiction took place were
specifically granted to the Power Authority for its Marcy South Line and may not be

transferred, assigned or in any way conveyed to any other party. Furthermore, the Public
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Authorities Accountability Act restricts the Power Authority’s ability to convey any rights
in real estate in which the Power Authority has an interest.

Presuming that the Power Authority has a legal right to convey or transfer a real property
interest or right, every conveyance of real property interests in excess of ten thousand
($10,000) dollars in value held by the Power Authority must be approved by the Power
Authority Trustees in a resolution. The Trustees have a duty to determine whether the
conveyance is in the best interests of the present or future operation of the Power
Authority. The Trustees could not convey a real property interest that would adversely
impact the Power Authority’s ability to maximize the benefits of its transmission assets.
Q. Has NYRI explained its plan for obtaining the necessary real estate property
rights on its Marcy South alternate route?

A. Inresponse to the Power Authority’s Interrogatory NYPA-5, NYRI mentions a vague
plan to “negotiate with land owners for all required propérty rights and interests and to
offer property owners at or above fair market value for rights and interests required.” In
response to the Power Authority’s Interrogatory 3 (‘2.”), NYRI states that it will acquire a
“stand alone easement from the appropriate property owners to locate its facilities on the
owners’ property, including those portions that may involve overlapping easements with
existing energy facilities.”

However, because the People of the State of New York acquired the permanent easements
for the benefit of the Power Authority with restrictions on the landowners prohibiting the

landowners from any activity that would or could “interfere with or prevent the use and

3930



10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

20

21

Case No. 06-T-0650 .
MARK D. O°CONNOR

exercise of the [Power Authority’s] permanent easement” it is doubtful that the landowners
could convey such rights. Moreover, on .those parceis on which the transfer of jurisdiction
took place, the transfer was personal to the Power Authority for the specific purpose of
constructing and maintaining its Maréy South Line. -

Q. Are you aware of any Power Authority future development plan for the Marcy
South Line?

A. No, I am not aware of any specific future development plans for the Marcy South Line.
I am aware that the New York Transmission Owners have recognized the need to evaluate
the status of the state’s transmission system and determine the most efficient way to
provide a reliable system to deliver electricity to support New York’s economy in the
future. The Power Authority is taking part in the State Transmission Assessment and
Reliability Study (“STARS”) which will evaluate the state’s transmission system and
recommend ways to enhance transmission system reliability for the future. I am also aware
that the NYISO’s economic planning process coupled with the STARS may provide a
comprehensive transmission plan for the state for the future. I believe that the NYISO plan
apd STARS will incorporate a review of the Marcy South Line.

The Power Authority, as one of the participants in STARS, will await the findings and
recommendations of STARS on the comprehensive state-wide transmission system before
initiating development plans for its transmission system.

Q. Does this conclude your direct testimony?

A. Yes.
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BY MR. MALONE:

Q Mr. O'Connor, are there any exhibits to your

testimony?
A (O'Connor) Yes. There is one exhibit.
Q And was this exhibit prepared by you or under

your direction?

A (O'Connor) Yes, it was.

Q And could you briefly describe what that
exhibit was?

A (O'Connor) Well, it's a -- it's a
representative permanent easement for the Marcy South
line.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I believe that's been
marked prior -- previously as 308.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: That's correct.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I'd like to do Mr. --
Mr. McGrath at the same time, and then offer both
witnesses for cross-—-examination, if that's agreeable
with the court.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes, I think that's fine.

Q Mr. McGrath, do you have before you a copy of
your direct testimony filed in this proceeding
consisting of nine pages?

A (McGrath) Yes, I do.
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Q And was this testimony prepared by you or under

your direction?

A (McGrath) Yes, it was.

0 Are there any corrections to your direct
testimony?

A (McGrath) No, there aren't.

Q If you were asked today the same guestions that

are in your direct testimony, would your answers be the

same?
A (McGrath) Yes, they would.
Q And have you sponsored or offered any exhibits

in your testimony?
A (McGrath) No, I have not.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I would offer both
witnesses for cross-examination.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Did we put the testimony in
the record? No.

MR. MALONE: I apologize.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: That's all right. That's all
right. The witness' testimony as previously described
by counsel should be copied into ﬁhe record as if given
orglly.

(The following is the prefiled direct testimony

of Kevin McGrath:)
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Q. Please state your full namé, affiliation, and title.

A. My name is Kevin J. McGrath. I am the Manager, Environmental Studies &
Remediation for the Power Authority of the State of New York (“Power Authority”).
Q. What is the Power Al;thority of the State of New York?

A. The Power Authority is a body corporate and politic, a political subdivision of the
state, exercising governmental and public powers. The Power Authority was created in
1931 through the enactment of the Power Authority Act (Chapter 772, Laws of 1931).
Q. Please describe your education.

A. Thave a Ph.D. in Biological Sciences from Fordham University — 1977.

Q. Describe your professional experience.

A. 1have been employed with the Power Author.ity since 1986. From 1986 to the present,
I'have held the positions of Environmental Scientist, Senior Environmental Scientist and
Manager, Environmental Studies and Remediation. Prior to 1986, I worked for nine and
one half (9.5) years in the Environmental Division of Consotidated Edison. During my
tenure with the New York Power Authority, I was the lead environmental staff person for
the licensing, constructing and operation of a 26 mile 345kV ac transmission line (8.8 mile
segment in Westchester County, 7.9 mile submarine crossing of Long Island Sound, and
9.6 mile segment-in Nassau County).

Q. Are you familiar with the Power Authority’s Marcy-South transmission line?
A. Yes, l am familiar with the Power Authority’s Marcy South Line (“Marcy South

Line”).
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Q. What is the Marcy South Line?

A. The Power Authority’s Marcy Soﬁth Line was licensed by the New York State Public
Service Commission by order dated January 30, 1985. The Marcy South Line is a 345 kV
transmission facility that originates in Marcy, near Ufica, and terminates in East Fishkill in
Dutchess County. It includes double circuit, single circuit, overhead, and underground
configurations, with varying widths of right-of-way. The Marcy South Line crosses over
private land, state property under New York State Departmént of Environmental
Conservation’s jurisdiction, and crosses in the riverbed of the Hudson River, which is
under the Office of General Services’ jurisdiction.

Q. Do you have concerns about the possible shared use of existing on and off Right-
of-Way (ROW) access routes during construction and operation of a NYRI Marcy_
South Alternate?

A. Yes, | have several concemns. NYRI has not provided plans for a coordinated joint
ROW program nor has it provided adequate responses to the Parties’ numerous
interrogatories on such matters. This makes it nearly impossible to evaluate and render an
opinion on the impacts the NYRI project would have on (a) the Power Authority’s
operation and maintenance of Marcy South infrastructure, and (b) the land owners from
whom the Power Authority has éasements. For example, in response to DPS 39, NYRI has
stated that existing access will be used for 76.4 miles of the primary route.

In Interrogatory NYPA-14, the Power Authority asked NYRI about their access road

assumptions for NYRI’s Marcy South alternate, and whether NYRI proposed to use Power
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Authority constructed on and off ROW access. The NYRI response stated that it “...has
made no assessment, at this time, of the miles of the Marcy South Alternate Route where
no new access roads would be required”. NYRI further states, “NYRI recognizes that there
is potential to use NYPA constructed on and off ROW access if the Marcy South Alternate
were certified by the PSC. As such, during development of the EM&CP, which will occur

after route certification by the PSC, use of NYPA constructed on and off ROW access will

be evaluated, and, if proposed, NYRI will enter into discussions with NYPA to define their

use and miti gation measures dt;ring and following construction activities which will then
be presented in the EM&CP.”

NYRI’s plan to discuss how it would use the Power Authority’s access routes affer
certification is not acceptable and in contravention of the Article VII process. It pre-
supposes “acceptability” of use that requires analysis before certification,

Q. Has NYRI proposed specific mitigation measures it would use during access road
construction? |

A. No. WRI has not stated what specific mitigation measures, if any, would be
developed during access road construction. When asked, NYRI’s response is similar to its
response to many of the interrogatories: that such matters will be discussed as part of the
EM&CP, which is submitted post certification and not an acceptable approach to such an
important issue.

Q. Has NYRI made any commitments regarding the scheduling of activities?
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A. Only conditionally. NYRI has stated that it will follow “.. .pfudent weather sensitive
scheduling of maintenance activities to the extent feasible”._ This statement does not
provide any plan for coordination with interested parties, such as the Power Authority.

Q. Do you have any other concerns regarding potential use of NYPA ROW by
NYRI?

A. Yes. Equipment and material laydown areas can impact existing structures, access
roads, and vegetation. When asked, NYRI has responded, as it has so often before, that it
will address the location of ény temporary material laydown areas, and their mitigation
measures, during development of the EM&CP, which, as I have stated above, will occur
after route certification and is riot acceptable.

Q. Has NYRI communicated its plan for vegetation management within the
potentially shared portion of the ROW?

A. No. In Interrogatory NYPA 7, NYRI responded that it would “undertake discuséions
with NYPA to determine the vegetation management along shared rights of way during the
detailed engineering and design phases of the Project [EM&CP]” to develop plans
regarding the shared use of the ROW in order to achieve the most compatible
configuration. As | stated earlier in my testimony, having this discussion post certification
1s too late to address and avoid or mitigate issues associated with the co-location of NYRI
with Marcy South.

Q. Do you have any concerns about NYRI vegetation management?
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A. Yes. Any modifications (i.e. filling, clearing, grading etc.) to the potentially shared

_ joint Marcy South ROW could significantly alter existing vegetation. NYRI’s failure to

provide adequate information could result in the Power Authority compiling inaccurate
information in its vegetation database and adversely impact the implementation of the
Power Authority’s Integrated Vegeta-tion Management Plan.

Q. Do you have concerns about NYRI potential impact on wetlands?

A. Yes. During its development of Marcy South, the Power Authority specifically avoided
construction in wetlands wherever possible. In response to Interrogatory NYPA 9, NYRI
stated that “Since detailed field investigations and final design have not been completed,
specific structure placement has not yet been determined that would indicate if fill would
be necessary within wetlands along the NYRI-Marcy South ROW. Such field
investigations and final design will occur after route certification by the PSC. However,
NYRI will keep structures out of wetland resource areas where possible.” Once again,
NYRI’s delay in conducting field investigations and providing a final design until affer
certification is not acceptable.

Q. If NYRI’s facility is constructed on new ROW, is this a concern?

A. The Power Authority does not know what NYRI’s intentions are at the present time.
Their proposed use of the Power Authority’s ROW may impact wetlands, and it is
impossible to evaluate such proposed use with the little information NYRI has provided. It

is clear, however, that underground segments of a NYRI Marcy South Alternate, and
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CARI’s underground alternate, would potentially impact wetlands within the existing
Power Authority ROW.

Q. Is underground construction within the Power Authority ROW a concern?

A. Yes. Marcy South was specifically designed to avoid placement of structures or fill in
wetlands. Transmission towers were placed to avoid wetlands and span open water areas
(i.e. rivers, streams etc.). Off ROW access was developed to approach sensitive
environmental areas from opposite ends. The proposed development of a continuous,
underground transmission facility within 50 feet of the edge of the existing Power
Authority ROW is too simplistic, and does not take into account the mitigation measures
used by the Power Authority on Marcy South. If NYRI has to avoid such environmental
conditions, the potential impacts on Marcy South may change significantly. NYRI has not
provided enough information to evaluate these impacts.

Q. Do you have any concerns about threatened or endangered species?

A. Yes. This issue is important to the Power Authority because it could impact its
continued use of the Marcy South ROW. DPS proposed condition 50 states:

“If previously unidentified threatened or endangered species are encountered during
construction, work activities will be temporarily suspended in the identified location until a
mitigation plan will be developed in consultation with the staffs of the DEC and DPS.”
Should such identified threatened and endangered species be federally listed, NYRI would
be required to consult with the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service in addition to the NYSPSC

and the DEC. NYPA must also be consulted to the extent that Marcy South is involved.
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Q. Do you have concerns regarding cultural resources?
A. Yes. NYRI’s evaluation of | co-locating its line in the NYRI ROW adjacent to the
Power Authority’s ROW does not take into account the cumulative impacts that such
construction would have on the Power Authority’s ability to alter or expand the Marcy
South facility if future conditions so warrant. Furthermore, in light of the State Historic
Preservation Office's (“SHPO”) determination that the NYRI projecf will have adverse
impacts on cultural resources (October 28, 2008 letter from SHPO to NYRI), the
cumulative impacts as a result of the construction and operation of NYRI become even
more of a cc;ncem. Because SHPO has already determined that there will be adverse
impacts, any additional work that the Power Authority planned would add to the
cumulative adverse impacts.
Q. Do you have any concerns about NYRI’s visual assessment of the Marcy South
alternative?
A. Yes. NYRI’s Supplemental Visual Impact Assessment (Appendix M) primarily
assesses impact of overhead structures on the landscape and does not factor in the impacts
of the expanded cleared ROW. The exception to this is where the corridor crosses over
ridgelines where NYRI acknowledges the impact of the cleared ROW would be greater.
The viewshed assessment of the Marcy South Alternative in Appendix L, section 2.2 does
not take into account the decreased screening effect of vegetation in a widened Marcy

South ROW.
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NYPA is concerned that NYRI’s widening of the Marcy South ROW may actually

increase the visibility of the NYPA’s ROW and overhead structures.
Q. Do you have any concerns regarding the archeological survey?
A. Yes. The original archeological survey for the Marcy South corridor was for an
overhead transmission line. Major impacts were considered to be limited to tower
locations. Burying 183 miles of underground line within the Marcy South ROW would
create major ground disturbances for the entire length of the line, plus access routes,
laydown areas and substations. This work would occur within the Power Authority's ROW
and the level of effort required is significantly more than what NYRI has demonstrated.
For example, for the Tri-Lakes 46kv project, an overhead project in the Adirondack Park
not subject to PSC Article VII process, the Power Authority was required to shovel test
about 26 miles of the approximately 56 mile route, with a test pit every 50 feet, with
additional test pits where anything of interest was found. NYRI has not conducted any
field work for the proposed Marcy South Alternates that are being considered for
certification in this proceeding. Finally, as stated earlier, NYRI’s response that it would
develop specific mitigation measures as part of the EM&CP, which is post certification, is
not acceptable.

Q. Do you have any suggestions for a proposed condition regarding cultural

resources?




4

Case No. 06-T-0650
KEVIN J. McGRATH

A. Yes. NYRI should be required to provide the Power Authority with proof of
compliance with Section 14.09 of the state code for work that is to be conducted on any
Power Authority access roads and/or ROWs before commencing work.

Q. Does this conclude your testimony?

A. Yes.
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MR. MALONE: Thank you, Your Honor.
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: You're welcome.
Okay. Cross—examination for these witnesses?
We have NYRI, we have CARI, DEC. That looks like it.
Ms. Wilkinson, is your cross long or short?
MS. WILKINSON: TIt's not long.
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. Did that answer my
question?
MS. WILKINSON: If I give you an estimate, I
know it's wrong.
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Go ahead. No. Go ahead.
MS. WILKINSON: Do you want me to start?
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. WILKINSON:
Q Okay. Good morning. Mr. McGrath, I think most
of my questions are for you.
You state that you were -- you've been employed
for the New York Power Authority since 19867
y:\ (McGrath) That's correct.
Q And were you involved in the construction of
the Marcy South line?
A (McGrath) On a limited basis. When I joined
the Power Authority, I participated on a limited basis

in the spill plan for the -- for the Hudson River
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crossing.
Q And today, do your duties involve oversight of

the Marcy Scuth line?

A (McGrath) Yes. We do vegetation surveys on the
right-of-way -- on all the right-of-ways.
0 Now, I note in your direct testimony one of

your concerns is with the possible shared use of
existing on and off right-of-way access roads by NYRI?

A (McGrath) Yes.

Q And you said that it's impossible for to you
evaluate and render an opinion on the impacts the NYRI
project would have.

I guess as a start, do you know how many access

roads are currently on the Marcy South line?

A (McGrath) No, I do not.
Q You do not.
Do you -- have you reviewed the NYRI

application with respect to their proposal for access

roads?
A ({McGrath) Yes.
Q And after reviewing that document, do you have

any opinion on whether their proposal would suffice
for —- well, let me strike that.

You've been involved in the construction of
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transmission lines; is that correct?

A (McGrath) Yes. I was involved in the Sound
cable project.

0 And do you have an opinion based on your
experience -~- on that experience whether you would be
able to tell from this application whether NYRI would be
able to use Marcy South's existing access roads at the-
same time that you are using them for your operation
maintenance requirements?

| MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, can I just get a
clarification?

MS. WILKINSON: Yes.

MR. BISSELL: lIs the question with respect to
the NYRI Marcy South Alternate or the NYRI proposed
route? |

MS. WILKINSON: No. All my questions are about
the Marcy South Alternate route because these witnesses
are from the New York Power Authority.

MR. BISSELL: Thank you.

Q And my question is, is given the New York Power
Authority's existing need for access roads and use of
its access roads, do you have an opinion whether there
is enough there to be able to share them with the New

York Regional Interconnect during their construction of
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the transmission line?

A (McGrath) I can speak in general terms to that,
but I'd also say that some of that might be better asked
of —- of a separate panel that has more experience with

right-of-way and right-of-way management. Mine is more

environmental studies is —-- is my field of expertise.
Q OCkay. So then would that be Mr. Cline?
A (McGrath) Mr. Cline is the head of the

transmission business unit. That's correct.

Q Okay. So then I'll direct -- you state in your
testimony that NYRI has not stated what specific
mitigation measures would be developed during access
road construction. What mitigation measures were you

referring to in that testimony?

A (McGrath) Stream crossings, work adjacent to
wetlands. There might be building spurs off our -- off
our —-- our access roads to access their construction

sites. There's very little information provided in
their application specific to Marcy South on any of
that. And that's -- that's our concern. We don't know
what their impacts are going to be. |

Q Turning -- turning to right-of-way maintenance.
And I'm not sure if you heafd testimony last week,

but -——- and I believe NYRI has stated their intention to
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have NYISO operate the transmission line and enter into
agreements with transmission owners with respect to the
maintenance and management of the right—of—way.

Has NYRI consulted you or are you aware of
whether they consulted NYPA regarding any contractual
arrangements for right-of-way maintenance?

A (McGrath) I;m aware that there was some
preliminary discussions, but my understanding is those

were largely data transfer, sort of a request for

information. I'm not aware of any contractual matters
whatsoever.
Q And, again, you may not be the correct witness

to answer this question, but do you have any opinion
whether the New York Power Authority could maintain a
combined right-of-way for the New York Power Authority
and for NYRI?

MR. MALONE: Judge, I think this may be beyond
the scope of what Mr. McGrath's direct testimony was.
I'm not sure that our environmental person is the person
to ask about access roads.

MS. WILKINSON: No, I'm talking about
right-of-way management. And I'm referring to his
testimony on page 2 where he said, "NYRI has not

provided plans for a coordinated joint right-of-way
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program." And that's what my question refers to.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And is your question is such
a program feasible?

MS. WILKINSON: Well, he —-- the testimony we've
heard is that there has been -- there has been limited
discussions regarding that. And what my question is, 1is
does he believe that would be feasible for New York
Power Authority to maintain both its right-of-way and a
NYRI right-of-way in a coordinated fashion.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I'm going to allow the
guestion.

A (McGrath) The Power Authority does share many
right-of-ways, and there is shéred right-of-way
maintenance. And that's about as much as I can say
directly to that. 'But, again, I suggest that that
question might be directed to another panel.

Q Sure. Thank you.

Now, you also expressed concerns with the lack
of plan from NYRI for vegetation management within the
potentially shared right-of-way; is that correct?

A (McGrath) Yes.

Q And you expressed concerns that the
modifications to the potentially shared right-of-way

could significantly alter existing vegetation; is that
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correct?
A (McGrath) Correct.
Q . And could you discuss what you mean by

"significantly alter existing vegetation"?

A (MqGrath) Essentially, our position is that we
don't know, based upon their application, specifically
what right-of-way management practices they plan to use.
They're stated in a rather generic and broad-stroke
manner. And without knowing the specifics of what
they -- what they're planning to do -- we have a very
prescribed, a very specific right-of-way management
plan. And without knowing what they're going to do, it
leaves us wondering what the effects might be.

o} And similarly with wetlands, you -- you state
some reservation regarding whether NYRI's plan is
adequate with respect to the impacts of wetlands. And
you note that field investigations and designs should
occur -- well, let me first ask you, is it your positiocn
that field investigation should occur before the route
is certified with respect to wetlands?

A (McGrath) The application had considerably more
information relative to the proposed right-of-way, and
there was less information specific to the Marcy South

Alternative. We don't think that there's adequate
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examination of potential impact on wetlands and
potential effects of impacts on wetlands on our
right-of-way. |

Q And you stated that NYRI's delay in conducting
field investigations and providing a final design until
after certification is not acceptable; is that correct?

A (McGrath) That's correct.

Q So that would be work that you would want them
to do ahead of time?

A (McGrath) We would like to know that, yes.

Q And if NYRI needed access to any NYPA property
to perform that work, do you have any idea whether.NYPA
would be able to provide that?

A (McGrath) I can't anéwer that.

Q You can't answer that.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Has NYPA offered NYRI access
to their property for the purpose of doing any studies
in this case, to your knowledge?

MR. McGRATH: I'm not aware of it.

MR. O'CONNOR: I'm not aware that they have,
Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you.

Q And with respect to underground construction,

your testimony indicates that the proposed development

3950



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

of a continuous underground transmission facility within
50 feet of your right-of-way is too simplistic and does
not take into account mitigation measures that NYPA used
on Marcy South.

What additional information would you want to
see in or&er to evaluate the impact of undérground
construction on the Marcy South?

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, can I just get a
point of clarification? That reference is not to NYRI's
proposed Marcy South Alternate. That's a reference to
the CARI buried cable alternate; am I cérrect? Just so
the record is clear as to what proposal you're asking
about, because you said earlier you're asking fully
about the Marcy South Alternate route, and now you're
asking about a total underground; which is not the NYRI
Marcy South proposed alternate.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Couﬁselor, was that the
context of the language that you were quoting, that is
to say the CARI underground route?

MS. WILKINSON: I don't believe the
testimony -- the question was -just is underground
construction within the Power Authority right-of-way a
concern. So if that testimony applies to the CARI

route, then I will limit my question to that.
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay.

MS. WILKINSON: It just wasn't mentioned in the
question. The limitation wasn't --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I thought you were referring
to somebody else's téstimony earlier in the proceeding.

MS. WILKINSON: No.

~JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. My mistake. The
record is clarified.

A (McGrath) So could you repeat your question?

Q Sure. The question that you addressed in your
testimony was, is underground construction within the
Power Authority right-of-way a concern?

MR. MALONE: Just for the record, that's on
page 6, and it begins on line 3. )

MS. WILKINSON: And I apologize, because my
page numbers are different than yours.

MR. MALONE: The confusion, Your Honor, we had
filed an amended testimony to -- basically for
formatting purposes. We hadn't formatted it properly in
what we filéd. So I'm sure that's where the confusion
comes from.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes. We've seen that more

than once.

"BY MS. WILKINSON:
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Q So in starting on page 5, the question was, if
NYRI's facility is constructed on a new right-of-way, is
there a concern? And that follows with the question
that I was asking about, is underground construction
within the Power Authority right-of-way a concern?

And with respect to that question that's on
page 6, what additional iﬁformation would you want to
have in order to make an assessment on the impacts of an
underground construction within the right-of-way?

A (McGrath) Well, when Marcy South was
constructed, it's my understanding that there were
extensive mitigations that were employed in terms of
avoidance, skirting of wetlands, avoiding wetlénds,
putting towers on each side of wetlands to -- so that we
did not go directly through the wetlands. And

underground construction, that wouldn't be possible, or

. unless it was -- unless they bored under the wetland.

And so those are our main concerns.

Q Okay. And with respect to the NYRI route,
turning to the -- your question at the bottom of page 5,
it sounds as if you have the same concern about not
being able to evaluate the impacts on wetlands. And I'm
on page 5, lines 16 through 20.

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, I object. We're
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jumping between two different scenarios. On page 6, the
testimony to which counsel previously asked about is a
question regarding construction of an underground
facility within the right-of-way. The question on page
5 relates to new right-of-way; i.e., outside the
right-of-way.

MS. WILKINSON: And, Your Honor, I think the
question speaks for itself. And I'm asking about the
testimony, as I said, on page 5, lines 16 through 20.
And I think the question and response speak for
themselves with respect to who they apply to.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Understood. I don't have any
problem making certain that it's clear what's being
referenced, however.

MS. WILKINSON: Okay.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I also suspect at this point
that the witnesses don't have your question. Would you
repeat it?

MS. WILKINSON: 1I'll ask my question. Sure.

BY MS. WILKINSON:

o] Mr. McGrath had discussed concerns with
potential wetland impacts from underground construction.

And my questicon is, are those similar concerns

with respect to construction on a new right-of-way as
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inaicated in the response on lines 17 throﬁgh 207

A (McGrath) And as I stated in my response, we
don't have enough information at this point on the Marcy
South to really be able to specifically know wﬁat the
impacts are going to be. And that's what I stated in my
response.

Q No, I understand. The problem was the response
before was with respect to the following question, which
was the underground proposal. So now I wanted to ask —-
my question was, I think you answered it, is your
response equally applicable to the construction on a new
right-of-way? And I think'you're saying it is.

A (McGrath) I'm totally lost. I apologize, but I
don't understand the questions at this point right now.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I believe, gentlemen, that
you testified that you had concerns with regard to
wetland impacts and impacts on other systems or
construction or plantings, or whatever it may have been,
that you did on your right-of-way to avoid environmental
impacts to wetlands and otherwise. And you expressed
concern again -- I believe this is correct, and if it's
not, please tell me if I'm wrong. You expressed concern
about those in the context of -- or impacts on thoée

things that the Power Authority had done as a result of
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underground construction on the right-of-way.

And I think counsel is asking you if you have
the same concerns, or would you have the same concerns
with regard to overhead construction, as I understand
it, not next to your right-of-way, or not onAyour
right-of-way in any event?

MR. McGRATH: ©No -- no shared right-of-way as a
proposal?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I thought that was your
question, counsel.

MS. WILKINSON: My question refers to the
question that he addressed in his testimony.

BY MS. WILKINSON:

Q If the facility is constructed on a new
right—of-way, is this a concern with respect to the
potential impacts on wetlands? And I think you're
saying it is. And I think you're saying that there's
not enough information to make an evaluation. And

that's what I wanted to clarify.

A (McGrath) The answer is yes.
Q That's --
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: That was -- that was a very

short answer for a very long series of questions, but I

like it.
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MS. WILKINSON: Well, I did refer to his
testimony to begin with. |

Q Okay. And I believe you've also -- and I
apologize if I don't have tbe page numbers correct, but
you expressed concern regarding equipment in material
laydown areas, that they can impact existing structures,
access roads and vegetation. Could you explain the
nature of your concern in that respect?

A (McGrath) Well, on the Marcy South right-of-way
and on all of our right-of-ways, we have a long-term
vegetation management plan. And based upon that plan,
we've -- we've strived to establigh a shrub plant
community out there. And any laydown areas, any spurs,
access roads, any disturbances are going to disturb —-
disturb the vegetation that we've worked to establish.
And so there potentially are impacts that are associated
with that.

MS. WILKINSON: Your Honor, I'm done.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I.tﬁink your description was
reasonably accurate, not long, but you didn't bite on
short either. But accuracy is the important part.

MS. WILKINSON: Yes, it is.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. We have NYRI and CARI.

And anybody else? Let's go to CARI.
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BY MR. KLUCSIK:

Q Mr. McGrath, returning to the territofy
Ms. Wilkinson just covered. Is it fair to say that your
direct testimony at page 6, lines 3 thfough 12 expresses
a concern that a continuous underground traﬁsmission
facility within the Marcy South rigthOf—way would
adversely affect NYPA's actions that were taken during
the construction of the existing Marcy South line to
mitigate impacts to wetlands and open water areas? Is
that the nature of your concern?

A (McGrath) Can I ask you to repeat that
question?

MR. KLUCSIK: It was long, so I'll ask the
reporter to read it back. And if that poses a problem,
I'll try to streamline it with that background.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes. Read that back if you
would, please.

(Requested portion of the record read back by
the reporter.)

A (McGrath) Yes.

Q And is.it fair to say that your direct
testimony at page 8, lines 6 and 7, suggests a similar
concern with respect to archaeological resources?

A (McGrath) The line numbers were 6 through 8 you
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said?
Q Six and 7, I believe.
A (McGrath) Yes.
Q Are you aware that CARI has proposed

construction of an underground transmission facility
within,ﬁhe Marcy ——- the existing Marcy South
right-of-way using horizontal direct drilling to avoid
wetland and water body impacts, and if necessary,
sensitive archaeological areas?

A (McGrath) In the filings that I've read, there
is discussion of the use of the shared right-of-way'in
the documents that I've read. It does not say
unequivocably that all wetlénds, all stream crossings
will be bored. 2And I think that's what our concern is,
I think. 1In the limited participation that I've had
here, I've heard some changes relative to what has been
stated in the documents, but my testimony here was based
upon the written documents that were in front of me.

Q Well, let me offer you a hypothetical then. If
horizontal direct drilling were used to avoid wetlands
and other water bodies, would your concern regarding the
adverse effects on NYPA's environmental mitigation
efforts be lessened?

MR. MALONE: Objection, Your Honor. That calls
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for speculation. And also, it's way outside the scocpe
of the direct.. I'm not sure that this witness can tell
exactly what horizontal directional drilling would be.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are either of you gentlemen
familiar with horizontal directional drilling?

MR. O'CONNOR: No, sir.

MR. McGRATH: Slightly.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. I'1l allow slightly
questions.

MR. KLUCSIK: I'm not sure where that leaves
me, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, rephrase —-- rephrase

" your question, and we'll see if the witnesses believe

that they have enough knowledge and information to
answer it.

Q If an underground transmission line were to be
constructed in the existing Marcy South right—of—way,
that is in the circumstance of a shared right-of-way,

and the construction method were such that it were

possible to install the line below, that is underneath a

wetland or other water body, would your concern
regarding the impacts of that construction on previous
NYPA efforts to mitigate impécts to wetlands and water

bodies, would that concern be lessened in that
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circumstance?

A (McGrath) Yes, I would say it would be, but
it's based upon my preconceived idea of what horizontal
boring is. My experience of where -- for example, on
the Sound cable project, we bored underneath the Bronx
River. There were huge pité that were there, a lot of
construction equipment, and it was a major, major
undertaking. And there were -- there were park lands in
the area and there were major disturbances associated.
They were mitigated afterwards. But if that's what
you're proposing to do, then I think there might be some
impacts associated with that during the construction
phase, perhaps, that might be able to be mitigated
afterwards.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Mr. McGrath, what is the
approximate date of the project you just referred to?

MR. McGRATH: . The Sound cable project?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes, sir.

MR. McGRATH: I would say that that was
probably about '87.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: 1987. Thank you.

MR. McGRATH: It could be '88. Sometime in
that time frame.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I just needed the general
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time frame.
BY MR; KLUCSIK:

Q Mr. O'Connor, your direct testimony at page 5,
lines 10 through 16 indicates that three parcels
occupying 49.5 acres of Marcy South right-of-way were
acquired by transfer of jurisdiction from the Department
of Environmental Conservation to NYPA; is that correct?

A (O'Connor)’That's what —- that is correct.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: While counsel is handing out
a document, Mr. McGrath, if I could ask you, did you
work for the Power Authority during the time of the
proposed or actual construction of Marcy South?

MR. McGRATH: Yes, I did, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Did you participate in that
Article VII proceedingé

MR. McGRATH: No, I did not.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: That's all.

Q Mr. O'Connor, I've just handed you a one-page
document. Could you describe that document for me,
please?

A (O'Connor) It appears to be CARI interrogatory
number 303 and my response.

Q And you prepared that response or were involved

in its preparation?
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A (O'Connor) Yes, I was.-
0 And .does your response to CARI-303 describe
the -- or identify the three parcels that were acquired

by transfer of jurisdiction?

A (O'Connor) Well, as I say in my response,
that's the result of our database search.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Mr. Klucsik, did you want this
marked?

MR. KLUCSIK: I did, Your Honor. 1I'm sorry.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Okay. The document CARI-303
interrogatory will be marked for identification as
Exhibit 324.

(Exhibit 324 marked for identification.)

MR. KLUCSIK: Thank you, Your Honor.

Q And is.it correct that your‘testimony indicates
that the transfer of jurisdiction from DEC to NYPA was
accomplished under New York Public Lands Law, Section 37

A (O'Connoxr) That's my understanding.

MR. KLUCSIK: Your Honor, I'd ask you to take
judicial notice cf the provisions of New York Public
Lands Law, Section 3, particularly paragraphs 2 and
4(a).

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Absolutely.

Q Mr. O'Connor, can you tell me how many linear
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miles it takes for the existing Marcy South transmission
line to traverse those three parcels that were the
subject of jufisdiction transfer?

A (O'Connor) I don't have that information.

0 Would it be possible for you to give me a

range, an approximation?

A (O'Connor) It would not. I would have to —- it
would be -- it would be an unnecessarily wild guess.

Q I don't want you to make wild guesses under any
circumstances.

Are you aware of instances where the underlying
fee owner, that is the fee owner where NYPA has an
easement, where the underlying fee owner for a third
party has been permitted to construct electric lines or
other utilities within an easement obtained by New York
State for NYPA for the existing Marcy South
right-of-way?

A (O'Connor) If you're asking whether or not we
have permitted uses within the right-of-way for other
utilities, the answer is yes. And I think my direct --
my testimony speaks to that.

0 Thank you. That was the question.

And are there at least eight instances in which

utility lines, gas or electric, for example, have been
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permitted by NYPA in the existing Marcy South
right-of-way?

A (O'Connor) In response to an interrogatory, I
believe that's what my database did showp

Q Let me see if I can prbvide that interrogatory

and flesh out your recollection.

Mr. O'Connor, I've just handed you a three-page

document. Could you describe it briefly, please?

A (O'Connor) These appear to be CARI
interrogatory number 301 and my respoﬁse to it.

0 And you prepared the response or were involved
in its preparation?

A (O'Connor) Yes, I was.

MR. KLUCSIK: Your Honor, I'd ask that the NYPA
response to CARI-301 be marked for identification.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: The document will be marked
for identification as Exhibit 325.

(Exhibit 325 marked for identification.)

Q Mr. O'Connor, does page 2 of Exhibit 325
describe those eight instances in which utility lines
have been permitted by NYPA in the Marcy South
right-of-way?

A (O'Connor) As derived by the Power Authority's

database.
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0 - Gentlemen, you both reviewed the NYRI
application; is that correct?

A (O'Connor) I have not.

Q Would you agree with me that in certain
portions of its Marcy South Alternative, NYRI has
proposed an overlap in right—of—way or a shared
right-of-way with NYPA; is that youf understanding?

A (O'Connor) That's my understanding.

(McGrath) Yes.

Q Have you formed an opinion on whether such
shafing of the NYPA right-of-way with another overhead
transmission line as proposed by NYRI might interfere
with NYPA operations or prevent NYPA from the complete

enjoyment of its easement?

A (O'Connor) I think I set out in my testimeony in

sum or substance that we don't have sufficient

"information to know what the impacts would be of a

shared right-of-way. And I set out in some detail the

permit process by which an entity would process such an

application through NYPA. And we would need a good deal

of information to even start that review of that permit
process.
Q Based on the information currently available,

have you formed any opinion with respect to whether a
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shared right-of-way might interfere with NYPA operations
or prevent the complete enjoyment of NYPA's easements?
MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, I object to the

extent that the question's asked to Mr. O'Connor. It

- was already indicated that he has not reviewed the NYRI

application.

A (O'Connor) I'm generally familiar with the --
with the idea of a shared right-of-way.

Q And based on your understanding to date and
based on your perception of the information available to
date, have you formed an opinion as to whether such
sharing would interfere with NYPA operaticns or the
enjoyment of NYPA's easement?

A (O'Connor) As my direct testimony sets out, we
have a permit process in place. These permits, once the
application is completed, are reviewed by numerous
disciplines within the Power Authority, including

engineering operations, legal, risk management,

environmental.
I can't -- I personally have not formed an
opinion one way or the other, nor would I -- nor would I

form an opinion. This is a collective decision made by
various disciplines within the Authority as to what

impacts other uses that the right-of-way would have on
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current or future operation of the Marcy South line. We
haven't been provided with a -- nor have we asked, been
asked for an application for a permit. We haven't been

provided with the information that the permit would

require.
0 Mr. McGrath, have you formed an opinion?
A (McGrath) My response would be identical as

Mr. O'Connor's.
Q I suspected as much.
MR. KLUCSIK: Thank you, gentlemen. I have no
further questions.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Anybody else before we go to

NYRI?
Okay. Hearing none, counsel.
BY MR. BISSELL:
Q Mr. McGrath, I beiieve I'll start by directing

a few questions to you, and then I'll just question
Mr. O'Connor later.

Mr. McGrath, on page 1, lines 20 through 21 of
your direct testimony, you state that you are familiar
with NYPA's Marcy South line; is that correct?

A (McGrath) Yes.
Q And I believe you stated earlier in response to

a question from DEC‘counsel, but I'll ask you again, is
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it your understanding that there are areas along

Marcy -- along NYPA's Marcy South line where the Marcy
South line is either adjacent to or co-occupies
right-of-way with other electrié transmission
facilities?

MR. MALONE: I just object, Your Honor. I'm
not sure that that characterizes the answer that was
given correctly, but --

MR. BISSELL: I'll ask the question separately
without relying on DEC's. A

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: That's fine. Please do so,

counsel.
Q Are you aware of whether there are areas along
NYPA's Marcy South line where the -- where the current

existing Marcy South line is either adjacent to or
co-occupies right-of-way with other electric
transmission facilities?

A (McGrath) Yes.

Q And referring to page 2, lines 13 through 14 of

your direct testimony, you refer to what I'll call a
coordinated joint ROW program, which you view as one of
your concerns because it has not been provided by NYRI;
is that correct?

A (McGrath) That's correct. That's what my
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testimony states.

Q And are you aware whether NYPA, during the
Article VII process for the Marcy South line, provided
such a coordinated joint ROW program for the existing
transmission facilities that the NYPA Marcy South line
was proposed to be adjacent to prior to route
certification by the Commission?

A .(McGrath) It's my —— I'm not sure that I can
specifically answer that, but it's my understanding that
when Marcy South was constructed,'fhat it was a ——
considered to be more of a joint effort between various
utilities. And it's my understanding that there was
somewhat of a coordinated effort that did occur
during -- during the development of Marcy South.

Q And with respect --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: During development of the
Marcy South project or certificate or application?

MR. McGRATH: I can't answer specifically.
It's my understanding that it occurred prior to -- prior
to the certificate and prior to the EM&CP.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you.

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, may I approach the
witness?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: You may.
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MR. MALONE: Judge, may I also approach to see
what they're showing the witnesses?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes, you may. I recognize
the book ié NYPSC, which is prior department rulings.
Do you have a volume and date on that, counsel?

MR. McCARTHY: Volume 25.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Volume 25.

MR. McCARTHY: 1985.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: 1985.

MR. BISSELL: And, Your Honor, for the record,
I'll be referring to Order Number185—2, which was issued
in January of 1985. |

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Probably 1985.

MR. BISSELL: I was trying to get the exact
date. I believe it's January 30th of 1985, which was
the order granting the certificate with respect to the
Marcy South line.

'MR. McGRATH: Can I ask you what you're
referring to, please?

BY MR. BISSELL:

Q Yes. Can I ask you to refer to page 301? And
this is with respect to the ordering clauses from the
Commission's order granting the certificate for the

Marcy South line.
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And I was wondering if you could please refer
to Ordering Clause 23. And just read for the record up
to —- before it gets into the subparts, which would be
Subpart A. So it would be the section beginning "No
major right-of-way..."

A (McGrath) "No major right-of-way maintenance
following initial clearing and follow-up treatment shall
commence until the applicant has submitted to thé
Commission and the Commission has approved a
right-of-way management plan for the certified
facility." |

Q And the next line says that that -- that plan
shall contain the following, and it begins a list. And
if I can ask you to turn to page 302 and read Subpart F,
which 1s one of the requirements of that plan.

A (McGrath) "F: Procedures for coordinating
vegetation maintenance schedules énd practices between

the rights-of-way used for the new transmission

facilities and those used for existing parallel

transmission or subtransmission facilities."

Q And based on the fact that this is an ordering
clause that granted the certificate, does that lead you
to believe whether that coordinated joint ROW program

was developed before or after route certification?
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A (McGrath) I think I've -- I've already stated
that it's my understanding that therelwas some
coordinated efforts prior to the certificate and prior
to the EM&CP. So I think I've really answered your
question.

Q And does this ordering cléuée appear to
indicate that the plan itself would be filed for
Commission approval as one of the ordering clauses to
that certificate?

MR. MALONE: Objection, Your Honor. That calls
for speculation by the witness. He testified that he
was not part of the Article VII proceeding. The order
is what it is. I assume Your Honor will take judicial
notice of it, but to ask this witness to interpret it I
think is clearly speculation and beyond the ambit of his
direct testimony. |

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, it may be beyond -- a
little beyond the ambit of his direct testimony, but he
did answer some questions in this regard with regard to
other cross-examination. And I think that counsel's
general line of cross 1s appropriate.

That being said, I think this witness has
tangential informetion, at best, with regafd to the

process, the legal process, not the environmental
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process perhaps, but the legal process that go -- that
went on with regard to the original Marcy South
proceeding.

And I would suggest to counsel that you
probably are not going to get any more information on
this line with this witness.

MR. BISSELL: Thank you, Your Honor. 1I'll move
on.

Bf MR. BISSELL:

Q Mr. McGrath, can I please refer you to page 5,
line 20 of your direct testimony? And on line 20, you
refer to the underground segments of a NYRI Marcy South
Alternate; is that correct?

A {(McGrath) Can I have a chance to read it?

Q Sure.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: How much do yoﬁ have,
counselor, do you think? It looks like more than 10 or
15 minutes.

MR. BISSELL: I would say 15 to 20.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Fifteen to 20.

MR. BISSELL: 1If it's —-

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Let's go off the record for a
second.

(Discussion off the record. Thereafter, a
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brief recess was taken.)
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I believe we left off,
Mrf Biésell, with you.
MR. BISSELL: I'll just —-- I'll just restate

the question.

' JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Oh, good. I appreciate that.

MR. BISSELL: Slight break. It might not be
remembered.
BY MR. BISSELL:

Q - Referring to page 5, line 20 of your direct
testimony, Mr. McGrath, you refer to the underground
segments of the NYRI Marcy South Alternate route; is
that correct?

A (McGrath) Yes.

0 And is it your understanding that there are
more than one underground segments of NYRI's proposed
Marcy South Alternate route?

A (McGrath5 It's my understanding that there is
one underground segment 7.7 miles iﬁ the initial -~ I
think —- I believe it's 7.7 miles in the initial —-
initial portion of the -- up near the Utica -- up near
the —-

Q So it's your understanding that there is only

one proposed underground segment for NYRI's Marcy South
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Alternate route?

A (McGrath) That's correct.

Q Given that it's your understanding that there's
only one underground segment, whiéh you represented as
7.7 miles, with respect to the concerns that you expreés
on both pages 6 and page 8 regarding underground
construction within NYPA's Marcy South right-of-way,
would it be correct that your concerns would, with
respect to NYRI's proposed Marcy South Alternate, be
limited to that single 7.7 mile underground secﬁibn?

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, just note my
objection. The witness just testified that there is one
segment, 7.7. What other segment -- I don't understand
the question. There is only one NYRI segment, and I
think that's what the witness testified to.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I thought that's where the
question -- what the question was referring to.

MR. MALONE: Could you just --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I don't think there are two
segments. There's only one segment, right?

MR. MALONE: And that's what the witness
testified to.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes. And I think that's

correct, and I think NYRI agrees with that.
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MR. BISSELL: Correct. The gquestion is a
fdllow—up to clarify that with respect to his testimony
regarding underground segments, that those concerns only
apply with respect to NYRI's Marcy South Alternate route
to tHat single underground segment that he represented
as 7.7 miles.

MR. MALONE: Sorry, Your Honor. I withdraw my
objection.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: With all of that
clarification. -

MR. McGRATH: I ask that you ask the question
again.

BY MR. BISSELL:

Q Sure. With respect to the concerns'you express
both on pages 6, if you want lines, it would be line 3
through line 12, as well as én page 8, and it's
respect -- with respect to lines 3 through 17 where you
expressed concerns regarding underground construction.
Just to clarify that, with respect to NYRI's Marcy South
Alternate route, that your concerns regarding
underground construction would be limited to that single
underground proposed section, which you represented to
be 7.7 miles?

A (McGrath) Correct. And I'd like to point out
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that in the statement that you read on page 5, at the
bottom, it says, "It is clear, however, that underground
segments —--" and the segments is referring both to the
NYRI Marcy South Alternate and to the CARI underground
segment. So that's what that was meant to —-

Q . Mr. McGrath, returning to Order 85-2 that was
provided, which is the order grantipg the certificate
for the Marcy South line, can you please refer to
Appendix C of that order, which is on page 3287 And
Appendix C states the general guidelines for an EM&CP
for the Marcy South line; is that correct?

A (McGrath) I'm just not —— I just don't know
that this is Marcy South that it's referring to. I
don't see anything here relative to Marcy South
specific. So that's my hesitaﬁion.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Do you have the first
number -- the first number. Do you have the first page?

MR. McGRATH: Case 70126.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. Is there a caption on
that case?

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, the section I'm
referring to —-- the order itself is contained in the
first section. There's also appeﬁdices to the order.

There's multiple appendices. One of those appendices is
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Appendix C to which I'm referring to. If --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: So what the witness has to
know to know that they're looking at the right thing is
they have to actually look through and make sure it's
the same case.

MR. BISSELL: Yeah. If the witness turns back
to the front and follows through, he'll see it's
Appendix C to thét same order.

A (McGrath) Page 205l—— page 205 states that case
70126, Power Authority of the State of New York‘Marcy
South —-

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Sir, I apologize, but could
you please speak a little closer to that microphone?

MR. McGRATH: Sure. Apologies.

A (McGrath) Page 205 states Case 70126, Power

Authority of the State of New York Marcy South 345 kV

transmission facilities. So yes.
Q  Appendix C to the order granting the
certificate, which is -- begins on page 328, ‘that

appendix sets forth the general guidelines for the EM&CP
related to the Marcy South line; is that correct?

A (McGrath) That's what the title of the section
reads, yes. |

Q And in your direct testimony, you do refer to
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at least one other Article VII project you've been
involved with; is that correct?

A (McGrath) Correct.

Q And in your experience with Article VII
projects, does an EM&CP normally occur prior to or after
route certification by the Commission?

A (McGrath) After.

Q Referring to page 5, lines 13 through 15 of
your direct testimony, you state that one of the things
which is not acceptable in your respect is the fact that
NYRI has not conducted detailed field investigations
with respect to wetlands; is that correct?

A (McGrath) Correct.

.Q And turning back to Appendix C from Order 85-2,
could you please refer to page 3317

A (McGrath) Yes.

Q And could you please read what is marked as
Clause G on that page?

A (McGrath) Appendix C, page 4 of 10 G: "The
location and type of all wetlands; e.g., marsh meadows,
bogs, wooded swamps, one acre or larger on or extending
into the right-of-way indicating on a site-by-site basis
the precautions to be taken to protect such wetland

drainage patterns, flora and farm.”
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0 And is that a reference to a detailed field
investigation of a wetland with respect to the Marcy
South line?

A (McGrath) I have not -- I mean, you're picking

out one separate clause in here, and then you're asking

me -- if you want me to read through the whole and put
it in context, then I will do that, but -- I apologize,
but I mean, that specific —-- that specific clause,

you're asking me to pick that out, and then give you a
response.
Q It might help if I -- can I refer you back to

page 3287

MR. MALONE: Judge, with all due respect, I'm
going to object. This is not our application. We're
here because another entity wants to put their line on
our property and use our infrastructure. To ask this
witness who testified that he wasn't part of the Article
VII proceedings back in the mid '80s to read from the
order, I really don't think is material to these
proceedings, Your Honor. And I don't see what probative
value these questions have based on the inquiry of
whether Marcy South should be certified or not.

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, with all due respect,

in regards to this question, the witness has testified
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with respect to what he views as not acceptable
practices by NYRI. And what I'm laying a foundation for
is in looking at prior Article VII proceediﬁgs, and
specifically the Marcy South line, whether such detailed
investigations that he is requesting be done prior to
certification were, in fact, conducted prior .to
certification, or whether they were conducted post
certification during the EM&CP, similar toc what NYRI has
proposed in this proceeding.

MR. MALONE: But here's the difference, Your
Honor. 1In that case, that was virgin territory. They
were not co-locating a line on someone else's property.
What Mr. McGrath has testified to is, we already have
our structures there, we already have our
infrastructure. Now, we don't have enough
information -- being already there, we don't have the
information we need to determine what effects it will
have, in his case, on environmental. The Marcy South
proceeding, there was no lihe there. to begin with. So
certain things could be done. Although, I must say,
Your Honor, there were —- there was a lot more
information, I believe, given in the Marcy South
proceedings as far as certification was concerned. But

the big difference is Marcy South —-- the document that

3982




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

provides for us to be on that right-of-way, there was no
other utility there when we did that proceeding.
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, I'm not so certain that

Marcy South for its entire length was a greenfield's

. project. I am sure that it shared or paralleled other

rights-of-way, number one.

Number two, detailed site-specific studies
almost by definition require you to be on the site. And
NYPA, like NYRI, had no, as a general matter, no right
to be on the private land where their facility was being
built. This whole issue about the relative detail of
the applicaticn versus the relative detail of the EM&CP
is based in large part on the accessibility of the land.

And I think, for example, staff witnesses
testified that they have seen applicationé which they
would rank as a 10, that is perfect, if you will, on
facilities where the applicant could Qet physical
access. And I think the extent of physical access is
almost by definition going to control how much detail
you can get in advance.

All of that being said, I understand your
point, counselor. I am sure that the Commission's o£der
will speak for itself, and you can cite to it

appropriately. I'm going to recommend that you move on
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to a different topic as I think, you know, whatever
points you wanted to make I think have been made, to the
extent of this panel's knowledge.

MR. BISSELL: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. BISSELL:

Q Mr. McGrath, turning to page 8, that's lines 6
through 9 of your direct testimony, you state that,
"Burying 183 miles underground line within the Marcy
South ROW would create major ground disturbances for the
entire length of that line."

Just to clarify the reference to burying
183 miles of underground line, is that with respect to
CARI's buried cable alternative proposal or NYRI's Marcy
South Alternate proposal?

A (McGrath) CARI.

Q Thank you.

Mr. d'Connor[ turning to page 1, line 16 of
your direct’ testimony.

A (O'Connor) Yes.
T Q " You state that you are familiar with NYPA's
Marcy South line; is that correct?

A (O'Connor) Yes.

Q And with respect to NYPA's Marcy South 1line,

are there locations along that line where the NYPA Marcy
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South line co-occupies the right-of-way with other
electric transmission facilities?

A (O'Connor) There are areas where we cé—locate
facilities on our structures.

Q And do you happen to know where those locations
are or how many of those locations there are?

A (O'Connor) I know it generally. I don't know
specific where the locations are. I just know generally
that there are fgcilities that are co-located on our
lines. As my testimony said, I've been the director of
real estate for the Power Authority since 1995, which
was considerably after the Marcy South line was built.
So my testimony is that I'm familiar with Marcy South
from a lands-rights issue as the director of real
estate.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I think you answered
counsel's question with regard to co-locating other
lines on your towers. And my question is, are there any
instances where other utilities - I'm not gquite sure how
to describe this - right—of-ways are also part of NYPA's
right—of—way?

Let me give you an example. It may be the only
way to make it clear: Are there any circumstances where

a utility pole —-- other utility poles run down the edge
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of your right-of-way, using some portion of your cleared
right-of-way as their right-of-way as well?

MR. O'CONNOR: I don't believe that situation
exists.

BY MR. BISSELL:

Q Mr. O'Connor, .turning to page 8, line-7 of_yoﬁr
direct testimony.

A (O'Connor) Yes.

Q You state therein that you are not aware of any
specific future development plans for the Marcy South
line, correct?

A (O'Connor) That is correct.

Q Based on your testimony, as well as your
experience with NYPA's land rights that are associated
with the Marcy South line, do you have an opinion as to
whether NYPA would grant land rights or permits to allow
for a total underground HVDC line located wholly within
NYPA's exist;ng rigHt—of—way for its entire -- for the
entire length of the line? |

A (O'Connor) Well, asAIithink I previously
answered a similar question, we have a permit review
process in place which -- which allows an applicant to
apply for a permit. The applicant would certainly have

to get legal rights from the underlying fee owner. Then
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we could permit that, but it would be reviewed
internally by NYPA, by our engineering staff, our
environmental staff, our legal staff. And probably a
pernit of that magnitude, we probably would also involve
a review af the Power Authority's trustees.

MR. BISSELL: Thank you, Your Honor. I have no
further questions.

MS. WILKINSON: Your Honor, can I ask
Mr. O'Connor one question?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay.

MS. WILKINSON: Thank you.

BY MS. WILKINSON:

Q Mr. O'Connor, are you aware of NYPA granting
any rights with respect to property which you received
through a transfer of jurisdiction with DEC?

A (O'Connor) Are we talkiﬁg about transfers of
jurisdiction with DEC for the Marcy South line?

Q Correct. |

A (O'Connor) The transfers of jurisdiction from
DEC for the Marcy South line, and I think I set out in
my direct testimony, are specifically personal to the
Power Authority, and it specifically doesn't allow us to
grant rights to third parties.

MS. WILKINSON: Thank you.
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I'm not sure which page this
is on, but -- oh, actually, it should be at the end of
your testimony. In the next to the last question that
you ask yourself, at the end of the first paragraph, you
refer to NYISO plan and SiARS, STARS being the State
Transmission Assessment and Reliability Study. Those
are two transmission studies that are ongoing at this
peint; is that right, sir?

MR. O'CONNOR: Well, I'm generally familiar
with those two transmission studies. My knowledge
basically is based on the web site, the NYISO web site.
But f believe those studies are opgoing. I'm not
involved in those studies.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Isn't NYPA involved with the
STARS study?

MR. O'CONNOR: I believe NYPA is involved with
the STARS studies. I personally am not involved with
the studies.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. Do you know when those
studies are scheduled to be completed?

MR. O'CONNOR: I don't.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you.

Any other questions for these witnesses?

Hearing none, gentlemen -- oh, redirect. I'm
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sorry. I forgot.
MR. MALONE: Just briefly, Your Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MALONE:

Q Mr. O'Connor, I believe that the Judge directed .

a gquestion to you about whether NYPA has offered access
to NYRI. Do you recall that?

A (C'Connor) Yes.

Q Has NYRI asked for access to NYPA property
along the Marcy South right-of-way?

A (O'Connor) Not that I'm aware of.

Q I also believe that the Judge indicated -- the
Judge talked about access on Marcy South. Are you aware
of any procedure that the New York Power Authority could
employ to gain access to propertiés to do studies?

A (O'Connor) Well, what -- the process we would

"undergo is, first of all, we would contact the effective

local land owners and ask permission to go on the lands
and do studies. Permiséion is sometimes granted.
Sometimes it's not in my experience. If we need to go
on lands and permission 1s denied, I believe the Power
Authority has a statutory ability pursuant to the Public
Authority's Law and the Eminent Domain Procedure Law to

go on lands to do studies and surveys and that sort of
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thing.

Q So you would not have to wait for the PSC to
issue a certificate before you could get access to land
to do studies; is that correct?

A | (O'Connor) Right. I don't believe PSC action
is a predicate to us accessing, through our statutory
rights, accessing private lands to do studies pursuant
to the Eminent Domain Procedure Law.

MR. MALONE: Nothing further, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: AThank you very much. Did
that raise any recross in anybody's head?

Ckay. Very good.

Gentlemen, thank you for your time. Thank you
for your testimony. You are excused.

That's all we thought we had on our agenda
today. Anybody disagree?

Are there any procedural matters that we need
to deal with?

MR. TORIELLO: Judge, do you have to move into
evidence the exhibits?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you, counselor, very
much. Mr. Blow is not here to remind me of that.
Usually Staff counsel is there to remind me. Thank you

very much.
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MR. TORIELLO: 1I've only been waiting for that,
Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: We have marked today Exhibits
308 through 325. Are there any objections to.moving any
of those into evidence?

No objections. Okay. The documents marked for
identificatipn as 308 through 325 are moved into
evidence.

(Exhibits 308 through 325 received in
evidence.$

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Anything else?

Okay. Very good. Thank you all, and we are
adjourned for the day.

Actually, let's not go off the record yet.

What are the estimates of the parties we have
here for cross-examination tomorrow? And that is --

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Actually, it might speed it up
if I go through the estimates we were given previously.
And I just want you to either confirm or deny that these
are still accurate.

CARI, you indicated -- well, I actually made up
some numbers for some people becapse you didn't give me

specific numbers. So I think I put down three hours for

3991




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

you.

MR. KLUCSIK: That's probably fair, Your Honox.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: And, Staff, I did the same,
three hours for you. |

MR. BELSITO: That's about right.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: NYPA, I have one hour for you.

MR. MALONE: Perhaps even less, Your Honor. If
these two guys are going for three hours a piece, I can
guarantee you it will be less. I would say half an
hour.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Okay. I'm going to leave it
at one just because, just to be safe.

I héve a question mark for LIPA. I don't think
they're here today either, but I believe someone
;ndicated.that they thought LIPA might have questions.

Then, DEC, I put you down for a half hour.

MS. WILKINSON: That sounds'about right, but
Mr. Sampson is -- is in charge of that. So I -- I don't
know what he has in mind.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Okay. So based on that, it's
I think seven-and-a-half hours, plus whatever LIPA has.

MR. BELSITO: LIPA will have some questions.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, if they're not here,

could we limit them to five minutes?
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MR. BELSITO: I would be surprised if it ends
up being.limited to five minuﬁes. ‘

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Maybe we could charge them if
they go over.

So what time do you want té start tomorrow?
It's going to be a long day.

We're going to start at 8:30 tomorrow morning.

Anything else before we go off the record?

MR. TORIELLO: Judge, just when do you think we
might schedule the witnesses for the Thruway Alternative
examination? Just that we would like to be heard in
some way on that scheduling. And it would be helpful to
know when that might take place.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: We still have you tentatively
down for the 22nd, I believe. Mr. Waite, correct?

MR. TORIELLO: That's right. But I mean, I
think Shafer and LaFleur have to be scheduled in --

JUDGE PHILLIPS: They're also down tentatively
for the 22nd. So what I had asked, we've marked them
down for -those dates. And if people realize they have
problems, please let us know as soon as possible,
otherwise they're down for the 22nd.

MR. TORIELLO: Well, I know that Mr. Waite has

an engagement from 9:00 in the morning until 1:00 in the
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afternoon. So he could be available late in the day if
we want to schedule Shafer and LaFleur in first.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: I think, Mr. Klucsik, you
indicated you had to get back to us on Mr. Shafer and
Mr. LaFleur or not. Did you? I can't remember.

MR. KLUCSTK: Your Honor, I'd like to confirm
their availability, but up untii now, our understanding
has been they would be -- that they would be available
for that week. So I'm not expecting a change, but
surprises do happen.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: So why don't --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: You expect them to be
available first thing on the 22nd, you kngw, 9:00 or
9:30, if you need travel time or something?

MR. KLUCSIK: I don't expect travel time would
be an issue for them, Your Honor. I would expect they
would be here and ready to go.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. Good. You might want
to tell them to expect that, becéuse they may well be on
first that time.

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, just a question as
we're trying to get thfough scheduling. Do you have a
date you'd like to propose for the NYRI panel to submit

its rebuttal as well? Just so we can firm up and put
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down their availability.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: 1 don't, only because I
haven't really had an opportunity to print everything
out or read everything. So we're starting on the 22nd
if you want to add them. I -- 1 cén't answer that right
now. |

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I think we'll have a better,
more specific idea actually on Monday. However, I think
you can tell them to generally plan sometime between the
22nd and the 24th.

MR. BISSELL: _Thank you.

MS. WILKINSON: Your Honor, I have one
question. Do you know if it would be possible, or maybe
I should direct this to NYRI, to provide the parties
with avcopy of the DVD that we viewed yesterday here so
that the rest our witnesses could -- could see it?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: What format would you like?

MS. WILKINSON: Tell me my options and I

will —-

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Blu-ray or not?

MS. WILKINSON: My qguess -- I don't know if we
have blu -- blu-ray at DEC. So I doubt it.

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, just to clarify

before you -- before you go into --
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Before I answer for you?

MR. BISSELL: With respect to the video that
was shown yesterday, the only format in which that video
was produced was blu-ray format.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Understood. You mean there's
not a machine you can stick it in and say change the
format and you get a copy of a different format?

JUDGE PHILLIPS: I actually wanted to ask, too.
I thought you had indicated previously that that took
several hours because the format was —-

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Days.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Oh, days.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I think we can handle this

off the record. We don't need this conversation on the

record.
Is there anything else that needs to be on the
record?
Okay. Hearing nothing, we're off the record.
(Whereupon, the proceedings adjourned at
12:48 p.m.)"
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